Reserved on :17.01.2025
Pronounced on : 07.02.2025
IN THE HIGH COURT OF KARNATAKA AT BENGALURU
DATED THIS THE 07™ DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2025
BEFORE
THE HON'BLE MR. JUSTICE M. NAGAPRASANNA

WRIT PETITION No.15522 OF 2024 (GM - RES)

C/W
oy WRIT PETITION No.18538 OF 2024 (GM - RES)
VR
L(_)catiom:tO
Kafnaiala, IN WRIT PETITION No.15522 OF 2024

Bench,
Dharwad

BETWEEN:

SRI B.S.YEDDYURAPPA
S/O LATE SIDDALINGAPPA
AGED ABOUT 81 YEARS

R/AT NO.381, 6™ CROSS

80 FEET ROAD, RMV II STAGE
DOLLARS COLONY
BENGALRUU - 560 094.

... PETITIONER

(BY SRI C.V.NAGESH, SR. ADVOCATE FOR
SRI SANDEEP PATIL, ADVOCATE AND
SMT. SWAMINI GANESH MOHANAMBAL, ADVOCATE)



AND:

1. THE CRIMINAL INVESTIGATING DEPARTMENT (CID)
THE SADASHIV NAGAR POLICE
SHESHADRIPURAM SUB-DIVISION
BENGALURU CITY
REPRESENTED BY ITS
PUBLIC PROSECUTOR
HIGH COURT OF KARNATAKA.

2. SRI SHAHSHANK SINGH
S/0 HARERAM SINGH
AGED ABOUT 25 YEARS
R/AT NO.D1181, DLF WESTEND HEIGHTS
AKSHAYA NAGAR
BENGALURU - 560 114.
AMENDED VIDE COURT ORDER DATED 14.06.2024

... RESPONDENTS

(BY PROF. RAVIVARMA KUMAR A/W.,
SRI ASHOK N.NAIK. SPL. PP FOR R1;
SRI S.BALAKRISHAN, ADVOVATE FOR R2)

THIS WRIT PETITION IS FILED UNDER ARTICLES 226 AND
227 OF THE CONSTITUTION OF INDIA READ WITH SECTION 482 OF
CR.P.C., PRAYING TO QUASH THE COMPLAINT DTD. 14.03.2024
FILED BEFORE THE SADHASHIVNAGAR POLICE, NOW
INVESTIGATED BY THE RESPONDENT CID PENDING ON THE FILE
OF THE FAST TRACK SPECIAL COURT-I, BENGALURU (VIDE ANNX-
A) AND ETC.,



IN WRIT PETITION No.18538 OF 2024

BETWEEN:

1.

ARUNA Y. M.,
AGED ABOUT 42 YEARS
NO.507, 4™ CROSS
SANTHOSH NAGAR
PIPELINE ROAD
T.DASARAHALLI
BENGALURU - 560 057.

RUDRESHA MARULASIDDIAH

S/0O MARULASIDDIAH

AGED ABOUT 52 YEARS

NO.14, SOMAPURA, KENGERI HOBLI
VIDYAPEETA POST, BSK 6" STAGE
KENGERI, BENGALURU - 560 060.

MARISWAMY G.,

S/O0 GANGADHARAYYA M.,
AGED ABOUT 59 YEARS
KAREGUDDADAHALLI
CHIKKABANAVARA
BENGALURU - 560 090.

(BY SRI C.V.NAGESH, SR. ADVOCATE FOR

SRI SANDEEP PATIL, ADVOCATE AND

... PETITIONERS

SMT. SWAMINI GANESH MOHANAMBAL, ADVOCATE)

AND:

THE CRIMINAL INVESTIGATING DEPARTMENT (CID)

CARTLON HOUSE, PALACE ROAD
BENGALURU - 560 001
REPRESENTED BY ITS

PUBLIC PROSECUJTOR



HIGH COURT OF KARNATAKA
... RESPONDENT

(BY PROF. RAVIVARMA KUMAR A/W.,
SRI ASHOK N.NAIK. SPL. PP FOR R1)

THIS WRIT PETITION IS FILED UNDER ARTICLES 226 AND
227 OF THE CONSTITUTION OF INDIA READ WITH SECTION 482 OF
CR.P.C., PRAYING TO QUASH THE FIR DATED 14.03.2024 IN CR.
NO.84/2024 REGISTERED BY THE SADHASHIVNAGAR POLICE NOW
INVESTIGATED BY RESPONDENT - CID IN CR. NO.9/2024 FOR
OFFENCES UNDER SECTION 8 OF THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN
FROM SEXUAL OFFENCES ACT, 2012 AND UNDER SECTION 354(A)
OF IPC AND CONSEQUENT ALL FURTHER PROCEEDINGS THERETO
PENDING ON THE FILE OF THE FAST TRACK SPECIAL COURT - I
(VIDE ANNEXURE B) AND ETC.,

THESE PETITIONS HAVING BEEN HEARD AND RESERVED FOR
ORDERS ON 17.01.2025, COMING ON FOR PRONOUNCEMENT THIS
DAY, THE COURT MADE THE FOLLOWING:-

CORAM: THE HON'BLE MR JUSTICE M.NAGAPRASANNA

CAV ORDER

WRIT PETITION NO. 15522 OF 2024

The petitioner is before this Court calling in question
proceedings in Special C.C.N0.1283 of 2024 pending before the Fast

Track Special Court-I, Bengaluru arising out of Crime No.84 of



2024, re-registered as Crime No.9 of 2024 for offences punishable
under Sections 354A, 204, 214 r/w 37 of the IPC and Section 8 of
the Protection of Children from Sexual Offences Act, 2012 (*POCSO

Act’ for short) and the consequent action of issuance of summons.

2. The facts, adumbrated, are as follows:-

The petitioner, an octogenarian, and former Chief Minister of
the State of Karnataka, avers to be the most decorated politician,
having been in politics for the last 54 years. It is the case of the
prosecution that a complaint comes to be registered on 14-03-2024
alleging that the complainant along with her daughter who was a
minor, visits the petitioner to seek help in respect of a cheating
case relating to the trading business and her investments. It is
alleged that the complainant spoke for about 9 minutes with regard
to the manner in which she was cheated during the said period. At
that point in time, both the mother and the daughter drink tea and
leave the house after the said conversation. In the interregnum, it
is said that the complainant insisted the petitioner to get the

complainant’s case investigated by constituting a Special



Investigating Team on the ground that she was cheated of several
crores. It is then, the complainant alleges that the daughter
complained to her that she was sexually assaulted by the petitioner
taking her inside the room. This is the complaint so registered on
14-03-2024. The complaint then becomes a crime in Crime No.84
of 2024 initially for offences punishable under Section 8 of the
POCSO Act and Section 354A of the IPC. Thereafter, the
investigation is transferred to the Crime Investigation Department
which registers a separate crime renumbering the earlier crime to

be Crime No0.9 of 2024.

3. A notice under Section 41A of the Cr.P.C. is issued upon
the petitioner on 28-3-2024, asking his presence before the
Investigating Officer, for questioning, in connection with the
aforesaid crime. The petitioner is said to have given voice sample
later. The petitioner on 10-06-2024 was again called and his
statement was recorded. Another notice comes to be issued on
12-06-2024. The petitioner was to be away, from Bangalore and
travel to New Delhi on account of his political commitments

previously fixed. The Investigating Officer does not heed to the



request for postponement of recording of statement of the
petitioner, the Investigating Officer would secure a warrant of
arrest at the hands of the concerned Court, which then drives the
petitioner to this Court in the subject petition. This Court protects
the petitioner by directing that no arrest of the petitioner should
take place. During the pendency of the subject petition, the CID
conducts investigation and files its final report before the concerned
Court. The concerned Court registers Special C.C.N0.1283 of 2024
by taking cognizance against the petitioner and others for the
afore-quoted offences and issues summons to all. Issuance of
summons leads the petitioner to file an application seeking
amendment of the petition raising a challenge to the entire charge
sheet and proceedings before the concerned Court. It is at that

stage the matter is heard.

4. Heard Sri C.V.Nagesh, learned senior counsel appearing for
the petitioner, Prof. Ravivarma Kumar, learned senior
counsel/Special Public Prosecutor appearing for respondent No.1
and Sri S. Balakrishnan, learned counsel appearing for respondent

No.2.



SUBMISSIONS.:

Petitioner’s:

5. The learned senior counsel Sri C.V. Nagesh takes this Court
through the complaint at the outset to contend that the first
informant was by then a habitual complainant. She has registered
58 cases, against several people, and few cases are registered
against her, by several people. This is to buttress his submission
that the mother of the victim was a habitual and disgruntled
complainant. He would then take this Court through the evidence
recorded by the Investigating Officer of the prosecution witnesses
who would all support the case of the petitioner, by taking through
each one of the statements recorded by the Investigating Officer.
The learned senior counsel submits that no such thing, as alleged,
has ever happened in the case at hand. He would contend that
allegations against the petitioner are for political reasons, to arm-

twist or wreak vengeance, from the hands of habitual complainant.

5.1. The petitioner only spoke to the mother of the child and

on several occasions had told that the victim was like his grand



daughter and he has seven grand daughters. He is now 82 years
old, not in a position even to switch on lights of his house, as he
needs assistance for everything. In this state of affairs, the learned
senior counsel submits, how can he put his hand into the shirt of
the victim and squeeze her breast, as alleged. He would, therefore,
contend that the statements recorded by the Investigating Officer
of the prosecution withesses themselves, should be taken note of

and entire proceedings should be obliterated.

5.2. It is his emphatic submission that the order of taking
cognizance suffers from blatant non-application of mind, as the
concerned Court in few irrelevant lines takes cognizance of the
offences against all the accused including the petitioner for offences
punishable under Sections 354A, 204, 214 r/w 37 of the IPC and
Section 8 of the POCSO Act, which cannot even be attributed to the
petitioner. He would contend that the order of taking cognizance
suffering from want of application of mind should be quashed, like
his submission that the entire proceedings should be quashed. He
would therefore contend that the proceedings impugned should be

quashed lock, stock, and barrel.
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Respondents:
Special Public Prosecutor:

6. Per contra, the learned Special Public Prosecutor
Sri Ravivarma Kumar appearing for the respondent/CID would
vehemently contend that the Court exercising jurisdiction under
Section 482 of the Cr.P.C. would not quash the proceedings basing
its reasons on the statements recorded by the Investigating Officer
at the time of investigation, be it in favour of the accused or the
complainant. It is not the stage at which this Court would consider
all these facts. He would submit that the conversation between the
mother of the victim and the petitioner, after the alleged incident, is
recorded on the mobile phone. This recording was sent to Forensic
Science Laboratory. It is confirmed that it is the voice of the
petitioner, and not morphed. He would, therefore, read the
transcript of the conversation to contend that the petitioner has
admitted his act by defending that he has only checked her. He
would thus contend that it is an open and shut case. It is his
contention that, it is a matter of trial for the petitioner to come out

clean.
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6.1. Insofar as the order of cognizance is concerned, the
learned senior counsel would submit that when the Court is taking
cognizance on a final report by the police, it is not necessary for the
Court to record elaborate reasons, at the time of taking of
cognizance. It would suffice if it is worded appropriately. The
learned senior counsel submits that there can be no warrant of
even interference to the order of taking cognizance. He would

submit that the petition should be dismissed.

7. I have given my anxious consideration to the submissions
made by the respective learned senior counsel and have perused

the material on record.

CONSIDERATION:

8. The afore-narrated facts are not in dispute. The political
career of the petitioner is a matter of record and it would not
require any reiteration. The complainant and her daughter meet
the petitioner at his residence on 02-02-2024. On the said date, it

is alleged that the petitioner took the daughter/victim inside the
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room and indulged in ingredients that would become offence under
Section 8 of the POCSO Act, apart from Section 354A of the IPC. It
is the case of the complainant that she comes back, to the house of
the petitioner to question him about the manner in which he has
behaved with her daughter. After about 40 days of the said
incident, the complainant registers the crime. Since the entire
issue is triggered from registration of complaint, I deem it
appropriate to notice the complaint. The complaint dated 14-03-

2024 reads as follows:

“14-03-2024
To
The Inspector,
Sadashivanagara PS,
Bengaluru.

From:

Ms.Mamatha Singh,

D1161, DLF Westend Heights,
Akshayanagara, Begur,

Bengaluru-560 114, Mob: 9632761281.

Sub: Complaint against B.S. Yediyurappa on sexually
assaulting a minor rape victim.

Respected Sir,

On February 2, me (Mamatha Singh) and my daughter, a
minor rape victim (Gauri Singh) visited former Chief
Minister B.S.Yediyurappa to seek help on my cheating
case related to trading business.
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Mr. Yediyurappa began to listen to my problem keenly on
how I got cheated. Me and Mr. Yediyurappa spoke for
around 9 minutes and he told his male maids to provide
tea. Me and my daughter drank tea while speaking to
him. During the nine minutes conversation I also
informed that my daughter is a rape victim and then he
said he know about her case. This was not the first time
me and my daughter met Yediyurappa for support and I
have documentary evidence.

I beseeched him to investigate my cases by constituting a
Special Investigation Team (SIT) as I was cheated of several
crores. Mr. Yediyurappa said he may not be able to support.
And all along the conversation he was holding my daughter’s
hand. My daughter considers him as grandfather and calls him
Thatha and I used to call him Appaji.

After about nine minutes he called my daughter to come
inside. My daughter listened to him and went. My
daughter and Yediyurappa were inside a room for at least
5 minutes. During that time, Mr. Yediyurappa asked
about the rape accused and can she still remember his
face. Later while talking to my daughter who is a minor
rape victim, he slipped his hand inside her shirt and
squeezed her right breast. My daughter immediately
pushed him away. Then she asked to open the door
which was locked by him when he took her inside.

Mr. Yediyurappa told her to calm down and slowly opened the
door. My daughter came out rushing and weeping. Mr.
Yediyurappa on meeting me again told that my daughter is
mentally disturbed. As my daughter was crying, I asked her
what happened. My daughter said he put his hand inside
and squeezed her breast. Angered by this, I confronted
Yediyurappa and asked him why you did this. He then
said I was just checking her whether she was really
raped or not. I asked him how can you do this?

Immediately, Mr. Yediyurappa tuned apologetic and offered to
help in cheating case. However, when I found my daughter to
be emotionally broken I refused the offer. Later, I again
confronted Mr. Yediyurappa and demanded an explanation for
which he told me not to reveal the incident in an intimidating
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manner. I went back feeling threatened and did not had the
courage to report the mater. However, I now thought over the
issue and felt that this is too serious issue to be ignored. Hence,
I am approaching you to register my complaint under relevant
sections of POCSO and other legal provisions.

Regards,
Sd/- Mamatha Singh.”

(Emphasis added)

The complaint is registered before the jurisdictional Police. This
becomes a crime in Crime No0.84 of 2024. The matter is transferred
for investigation to the CID where the crime is renumbered as
Crime No.9 of 2024. On 28-03-2024 comes the first notice against
the petitioner under Section 41A of the CrPC seeking his presence.
The notice reads as follows:

2.20.8. Jpdex® Jneedes®

(41 37 (D) 2.8T.2.20 DBORNY )

S [p0d 3T SRDRBDHZYFI0BT  FortHed J0B Tpde T
S9.330:09/2024 BL0: 8 Ppedee Sood) DI 354(0) DA (STRIINT Zpdes® Toes
Swe.Fo: 84/2024) BBTHI, SooBBEZOB D), AITH BNSADIBOT e
B008: 12.04.2024 Tp¥ned dro. Jo 216, 33 DB, «3T5 -1 3T, 3.0.8 T3,
oridet) @) 33068 3edZ0NY Fwod BAST TN ~eUNG.”

Voice sample of the petitioner is later taken and the petitioner is

directed to appear before the Investigating Officer yet again in the
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month of June 2024. The petitioner appears on 10-06-2024 and
was directed to appear again on 12-06-2024 on which day the
petitioner had a previously fixed political engagement and had to
travel to New Delhi and in fact flew to New Delhi. But, the
Investigating Officer would go before the concerned Court and
secures a warrant of arrest under Section 73 of the Cr.P.C. alleging
that the petitioner is not cooperating with the investigation. Then
the petitioner immediately knocks at the doors of this Court in the
subject petition. A coordinate Bench of this Court on 14-06-2024
by a detailed order grants an interim order. The order reads as
follows:

“Submission of learned counsel is accepted and Office
Objections in Crl.P.N0.5529/2024 are overruled.

The case in W.P.No0.15522/2024 (GM-RES) filed under
Articles 226 & 227 of the Constitution read with Section 482 of
Cr.P.C., seeks quashment of proceedings arising from Crime
No0.84/2024 of Sadashivanagar police station, Bangalore. It
alleges offences punishable under section 8 of Protection of
Children from Sexual Offences Act, 2012 and 354A of Indian
Penal Code, 1860. The petitioner is directed to array
Mr.Shashank Singh i.e., petitioner in W.P.N0.15639/2024 (GM-
RES) as 2nd respondent.

Learned Advocate General Mr. Shashikiran Shetty accepts
notice for Respondent No.1 and Mr. S. Balakrishnan, learned
counsel volunteers to appear for Respondent No.2.
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The case in Crl.P.N0.5529/2024 is filed u/s 438 of Cr.P.C.
for the grant of anticipatory bail in respect of the same Crime
Number.

The records reveal that the Police had issued a notice
under Section 41A of CR.P.C., on 28.03.2024 for the
appearance and accordingly, the Petitioner appeared before the
Investigating Officer and thereby, participated in the
investigation process. The second notice of the first kind dated
10.06.2024, served on the Petitioner on 11.06.2024, instructed
him to appear on 12.06.2024 at 10.30 a.m. for interrogation.
Petitioner by his reply dated 11.06.2024 told the police that he
would come on 17.06.2024, he having some scheduled
meetings at New Delhi. In fact, he flew to New Delhi on the
night of 12.06.2024. Therefore, it cannot be said the petitioner
is not cooperating in the investigation.

Learned Sr. Advocate Mr.C.V.Nagesh appearing for the
petitioner submits that the power to arrest availing u/s 41
having not been exercised and the notice procedure u/s 41A of
the Cr.P.C. having been adopted consciously and his client
having already participated in the investigation process and
further, assuring to participate again on 17.06.2024, the police
could not have secured a warrant of arrest u/s 73 on the ground
that the custodial investigation is necessary. He draws attention
of the court to the material particulars of the case as to the
incident of the offence, delay brooked in lodging the FIR, the
credentials of the complainant who breathed her last in the
recent past on account of cancer and the nature of allegations
leveled against the petitioner. He also mentions about a
plethora of cases filed by the complainant against others and
that they are all frivolous as is the case against his client too.
Further, he also mentioned about the political vendetta. So
arguing, he seeks stay of all further proceedings.

Learned Advocate General per contra makes submission
that the petitioner is not cooperating in the investigation
process; the police notice dated 10.06.2024 has been violated
with no justification whatsoever; even otherwise, custodial
interrogation has become imperative; regard being had to
seriousness of the offences involved and the political
background from which the petitioner hails, no interim relief can
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be granted to him. Mr.S.Balan appearing for the now added 2nd
respondent in the quashment petition, also made similar
submission, highlighting the recent demise of complainant and
lethargy attributable to the police in the matter of investigation.
He also notifies to the court his client's W.P.N0.15639/2024
wherein, he has sought for arrest and detention of the
petitioner and for a direction to accomplish the investigation on
a war footing.

Having heard the learned counsel for the parties for some
time and having perused the Petition papers, I am of the
considered opinion that at this stage, no case is made out for
halting the ongoing investigation in Crime No0.84/2024 and that
the petitioner should participate in the same by appearing
before the jurisdictional Police on 17.06.2024 as was assured by
him. That being said, the petitioner, who is a former Chief
Minister of the State for multiple times and who is now an
octogenarian, shall not be arrested when he appears before
police and cooperates in the investigation process.

Very many issues canvassed by both the sides merit
deeper examination after the filing of Statement of Objections,
for which time as sought for, is granted.

Call these matters on 28.06.2024.”

Again on 12-07-2024, the coordinate Bench passes the following
order:

“Learned Addl. SPP seeks a short accommodation. Learned
counsel Sri.Balakrishan appearing for the respondent is agreeable
with the request.

Learned Sr. Advocate sri. C V Nagesh appearing for the
petitioner vehemently opposes the adjournment contending that
the Charge Sheet having been filed, cognizance of the offences has
been taken by the court below in Spl.C.C.N0.1283/2024 and his
client’s personal presence too is being insisted upon on the Monday
imminent, i.e., the next hearing date.



18

Having heard the learned counsel for the parties and having
noticed the attending circumstances, the request for the
adjournment is accorded and the matter is adjourned to 26.7.2024.

The learned judge of the court below is requested to grant
exemption from personal appearance of the Petitioner-accused till
this matter is taken up by this Court on 26.7.2024.”

The interim protection so granted is in subsistence even today.
Since the investigation was not stayed, the CID concludes the
investigation and files its final report — the charge sheet before the
concerned Court. The summary of the charge sheet so filed by the
CID reads as follows:

" BremotReIE :
es8ped-1 D.0xF aHBA3RTS:

DF208: 02-02-2024 Bowdh Y} DD 11-15 Hoedrt STTHWTTB )3
DD don* TIWD, B, DNYW Fe0T ewdaed 17 IFFT Tog-2 TSD 0T
SN0 FDdIINT RPOET Tt méérﬁ’ 3e0T3 F0.381, F3YNO 6T Fo)7F, 8T°D0D
23 Bo3, Sonided BO wBeed-1 CSTIY &feed Fol, dudrerdhmedd 3, DY
e 85 HoTW BWoBB VT30 BBV DR VST NeITRFY To0d 2BNIBRDToZ
Be9B o8y, 8 OI esdeed-1 33D &cmédomddfao&r? FoBTRB Feod owdad
0,3 DedBe3, * (Wrist) B, o8, 08 ©BDER0BE), 033 esdeed-1 B3
JpoB 23ewdabY “e¥r 239" Dot Be? FIS BBBY *GoST Jeemo DR et
A% a3 2,08 exsont dedurt Bdthdeomd @eeh ohv BuBERY, PTBBI Jeod
eovdad a9 20 IJH AT e Jex' IoBBoBB wdeedodh Sww I3dcobe
Qo) BeRwen, Feod 2pudady "FHD SFAB" 0w 02 2500 YT So3T sTeed-1
3D &80 I3 oR) S doth BePwen Fpod wowd B8URIT JIFF votdh dewaon
sdped-1 03D B2, OBri;N0B Feod wewdad &y w¥ 8; Fod sdadh 2o dWabIY
&3 Bges ooB 3evdain Newdrieod 8- aBr;Nond Bdeed-1 33T 8,00, 3%,
3,0, Bed @eehH dod "'erehw Brdhd” votd BePgdow So3T 8deed-1 33D B
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a%’cwdgq :-’3,&3, 36 30D ol owdod 8éoi)e2 RE), Qwod @BrehH Boed® Uz S

BRTT BRENDZIT. So83 8URed-1 8D T 8Q BYIF JTZUELTITRSE o3 -1
T[OR A, FaRQ W ORe IPROL SHPRYTRCT Tew wdeeoww m3-1

Ssone X 3 HedIoB Bo, Bo Ithinky IDLAHIT.  ATDHEOD 3D,

Fe’ ez’ BP0 TY BBB, FOWOHAT DROINE VT ERT JRAT I0IT QJW0E:
20-02-2024 Tomd ©BRed-1 TR ©=0 IXWT0eT weea-2, 3 I, 4 ORT
B02ov0T TF-1 WD) 2 TBOIW, Tz, WIN FTWATROW, HTFPOR, BBe-2

ORT  IWOWOT STRINTDTT FeFenE TIOWOT BT TRET, AT DRAERE
BREAT, ©9RF(RIET [PRR), S0IC WBC D-FRET'T MLOCNOTOR IB
LRG3 memm@ 39T F[RY T0BT BBec-1 TIT BBRe-3 THOR
TeY Aws-1 J=0n dw 2 O INTD BT, BRRY V3T =BReHITHOON =ed
330Y RNCN 300B Heedee ©F, & 354(2), 204, 214 BWT 37 Dy OB
dTTE Cksieplapyafglesicriel

esgRed-2 LT dg.ao:

&cmémmdd) 3D, TS T 8T 803686 0020IT  dBASwee
efednetd BB 033 BV0B: 20-02-2024 Tord esTRed-2 BID 3Bped-1 BIT3
SeeSed edr sdeed-3 D) 4 S3dRoBT JdTREHTTRY D) F0B ewdadhy
SoBdFd BT, B8deed-1 T3 DI BSZodh  LTWDTT DIFpOD
&cméc:bmdd TeT’ 2T B30T T Fe; BT &’)&oiuawéfoeaifaddg{ 9P
(BOeex® Sol). J03T ©IT D-Fped'S M LOMOBUR IT IBdWe / BT,
BOeer FoBd J03T 8Tped-1 TS0 8BeBBo3 8TRed-3 BIT BBAOT LT
Dwedoed BeHd DB dorf BS0F Te. 2 0F INWD TSI, BB ¥ST
sBpedntR ol Fed BB B eNalod Bwo: 204, 214 JHI 37 DA OB dFTF
OBTFIIODTIT.

esgped-3 DTS 0. eJees d)d)#&:cgobé:

LTVITID S, FeTwws 0T FIF, [ooHIT  IBadwee
feloed Dol P03V DV08: 20-02-2024 ToW) eBRED-1 BRIT BeESAD edr
88ped-3 DIB) 8Teed-4 3D Tog-25 DHeT T3Te0dT S0dordhmedd DIT
@peN, sdped-2 33Cp00T Fed THDWITTRY D) Feod W3R SoBdFd
VBOIY 3D, B0 ©Beed-1 B3I DI FOBoD  LTZWHTT DIFPOD
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&cmémmdd PeTFend’ oB0oT T Fpe, 83 &éa&me/@maﬁmd@ 99D
(BOee* ToBR), IV D-TFeX'T MwBIOT Ix dBAwe/Jpeedpedy Beesr
B BB F0BT shped-1 BT $8TeBB0I LT/ WTTR DRI don® B30T
dr 2 ©F IND B VeB VBT BN 0BT Fed FZ B graNairaN Bvo: 204,

214 J&3 37 VA B dFoBF VBVBFIBNDTIT.

esgped-4 3. doamd&) A° eJees riomddoi)‘g

LTVITID B, FeTwws 0T FIF, [ooHIT  IBadwee
e B3 F033 B008: 20-02-2024 Bord BTRed-1 33T BeuSad Dedr
sBred-4 D) BBeed-3 3D Tog-25 DI S3Ce0BT Darer@meds DI
®Bped), Bsdped-2 330D Fed 209 BHreToRy DB Feod evdabRY BoBEFd
BT B, F00IQ DR) 0T 53Ry, BoBEFY WTTIY, SN, 5003 sBeed-
1 338 DI B3B3 Sarer B8 DIIPOD Ba3rer DTS Ferans® e7e3doT
3D Foe, IoBF dBdwee/Fpeed ey BRI (B IB), TV 0-TeI
N,00M0T BB B Swee/apeclnesy B B JBBOD SoBT e8dped-1 BT
888803 8TRed-3 83T BT 2T2B00E eDd DB dor' TROT dw. 2
Og IO BBy, BB ¥BT sdeednwe odr Fed BB ereNadrod dvo: 204, 214
B&3 37 DA B dFodF WBTIGFITNHST.”

(Emphasis added)

On filing of the final report, the concerned Court takes cognizance
of the offences against the petitioner and others in the companion
petition and registers Spl.C.C.N0.1283 of 2024. The order of taking
cognizance reads as follows:

“04-07-2024

Case called out. Learned Special Public Prosecutor
present.
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Heard and perused the office note and also perused the
police report and the documents submitted along with the police
report including complaint, FIR, statements of witnesses and
the documents.

On perusal of police report and documents produced
along with police, there are prima facie material placed records
so as to proceed against the accused and also to issue process
against the accused.

Therefore, on being satisfied with prima facie
materials placed records, exercising the powers U/s

190(1) (b) r/w Section 193 of CrPC, cognizance is taken
for the offences punishable Under Section 8 of POCSO
Act, 2012, Section 354(A), 204 and 214 r/w Sec.37 of
IPC.

Office is directed to register this case as Special
C.c. in criminal register.

Office to attend regarding compliance U/s 35(1) of
POCSO Act i.e., securing statement U/s 164 of CrPC,
Medical report, FSL Report, Property from the
complainant Police.

Issue summons to the accused persons R/by
15-07-2024."

(Emphasis added)

The learned Judge notices that he has perused the records and
documents and finds that there are prima facie materials against
the petitioners in all these cases and registers the case as Special
C.C and issues summons. While so ordering, the Court observes

that office to attend regarding compliance with Section 35(1) of the
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POCSO Act, securing statement under Section 164 of the Cr.P.C.,
medical report, FSL report and property from the complainant

police.

9. The learned senior counsel for the petitioner takes this
Court through several statements of witnesses to contend that
those witnesses whom the prosecution itself has examined, all
speak in favour of the petitioner. Therefore, those statements have
to be looked into, and the proceedings be obliterated against the
petitioner. The statements on which he would seek to place reliance

upon are as follows:
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One Sri J.S.Manoj, CW-13 tenders his statement on 25-03-2024

and was also questioned by the Investigating Officer. The statement

tendered and the questions so asked read as follows:
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Yet another witness upon which the petitioner seeks to place heavy
reliance upon is of one Sri Shivananda Tagaduru. His statement is

as follows:
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The afore-quoted are the statements recorded by the Investigating
Officer under Section 161 of the Cr.P.C. upon which heavy reliance

is placed.

10. The victim has also tendered her statement under Section
164 of the Cr.P.C. before the learned Magistrate. The victim gives
vivid narration of what transpired on 02-02-2024, which is as
follows:

“On questioning the victim, she stated that she is giving
statement without any fear from any person. The victim is
knowing Kannada and English languages and she preferred to
give statement in English.

I am residing in abovesaid address along with my
mother. My mother is household used to take care of me. On
2-02-2024 at about 11.00 a.mm. to 12.00 noon around I went
to house of Sri Yadiyurappa for 2 reasons. Out of them first
reason with respect to the POCSO case which was registered
through my mother which was in the year 2015 in order to
make SIT enquiry of abovesaid case along with other related
cases and second reason is for the case which was occurred
with respect to my mother’s trading business. I went to house
of Sri Yadiyurappa along with my mother, at that time Sri
Yadiyurappa was sitting in the hall of his house situated at
Dollar’s colony. His house name is Dhavalagiri. At that time Sri
Yadiyurappa was watching TV and we greeting him by saying
Namaste. Immediately he held my right wrist by his left hand, I
thought he is as if my grandfather. My mother sat in another
sofa adjoining to the chair in which Sri Yadiyurappa was sitting.
He enquired about my name and education. Meanwhile my
mother was showing all documents which was brought by her.
He was not fully concentrated towards the documents which
was showing and explaining by my mother, but he was
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watching TV. Later on, Sri Yadiyurappa ordered his cook by
name Hanumanthu to get tea for my mother and milk for me.
Accordingly, cook Hanumanthu brought the tea and Milk and
kept on Tipoy. Then Sri Yadiyurappa left my wrist and
instructed to have milk and my mother was instructed to have
tea. While drinking tea also my mother was continued to explain
details of her case. After having of milk and tea we kept our
cups on tipoy.

2. Later on, Sri Yadiyurappa called me inside. At
that time my mother asked whether she too permitted to
come inside or not, at that time he instructed my mother
to be in outside. At that time, I thought that, during
enquiry of the previous POCSO case I have been enquired
privately, so I thought like that only. At that time my
mother also instructed me to give cases details properly.
Accordingly, I followed Sri Yadiyurappa and I went to
one room which was situated beside the hall in which few
sofas and few tables were there. Immediate entering in
that room Sri Yadiyurappa locked the door with key. By
observing this locking process I thought why he is
locking the door. He approached near to me and asked
am I able to identify the culprit of previous case. I say
ves loudly. At that time again he asked about my age at
that time committal of previous offence. I told 6 and half
years old, again I repeated this word as he had not heard
it properly. While repeating my age factor second time,
he put his left hand in my shirt and bra and squeezed my
right breast, immediately I pushed his left hand with my
left hand and stay away from him. At that time, I about
to cry and told him to open the door with some angry. At
that time Sri Yadiyurappa said okey and he put his hand
in his pocket and take some money in order to give me. I
declined to accept it. At that time he instructed me to not
to deny any such offer, it is nothing but a blessings of the
elder persons. By saying this one he kept the money in
my hands. Thereafter he opened the key and we went
outside. My mother who was sitting outside saw my face
which was sad and my eyes were filled up of tears. She
guessed that as I have been enquired about previous
case, so due to recalling of previous bad event I might
have felt sad.
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3. After coming out of the room Sri Yadiyurappa sat
in the same chair by saying to my mother that, I was so
mentally disturbed. Meanwhile I went to aside of my
mother, sit along with my mother. My mother was
continuously explaining that since 9 years period we
were trying to have justice, but in vain. At that time Sri
Yadiyurappa told that he is helpless and he will see. By
that time Sri Yadiyurappa also gave some money to my
mother, at that time my mother was not ready to accept
it. At that time I also told my mother that he had also
given money to me. Then we both declined to accept it,
but he advised that it is nothing but blessing of elderly
persons. After this assurance we took our bag and went
outside.

4. After crossing of their gate my mother was little bit
ahead and I was following my mother and called her as Amma.
She turned back and asked me what happened. At that time I
requested my mother to go to Starbucks i.e., coffee shop is
existing adjoining to Sri Yadiyurappa’s house. Accordingly, we
went there and by sitting outside of that coffee shop I narrated
entire incident, was taken place inside the room of Sri
Yadiyurappa’s house. After hearing of abovesaid incident my
mother get stunned and again we went back to Sri
Yadiyurappa’s house to confront about that incident.

5. Then we went inside the gate of Sri Yadiyurappa’'s
house, then gunman by name Aradhya who sat near the main
door asked me what had happened and my mother replied
again we want to meet Sri Yadiyurappa. Then the gunman
instructed us to wait for some time as Sri Yadiyurappa was in
meeting with some other persons. Meanwhile my mother went
aside within the compound itself and made phone call one
lawyer by name R.R. Hiremath and narrated entire incident, at
that time I was standing near by mother. My mother told that
the above said counsel has instructed us to talk calmly.
Thereafter my mother came to me and took out the cash from
the bag which was given by Sri Yadiyurappa and we took one
selfie with that cash.

6. When my mother was talking in phone at that time I
was thinking that, in previous cases the police officials and
public have asked me and my mother about evidence to prove
the incident. Hence at this time also I thought that, the officials
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may ask about evidence of present incident, then I made mind
to record the conversation to be held with above said Sri
Yadiyurappa. Then without knowledge to my mother after
taking of selfie with cash the persons who were in the meeting
came out, then while entering inside I set my phone for
recording. The persons who came outside known by my mother
and my mother spoke with them and requested them to be
there only till we come out. Accordingly, we entered in the
house. At that time Sri Yadiyurappa was watching TV. My
mother asked him what he has done with her daughter inside
that room. Sri Yadiyurappa replied to my mother that I am just
like his granddaughter. Immediately my mother raised question
that, if it like so, why you put your hand in her shirt/blouse.
Immediately he dragged my mother’s hand and made her sit in
sofa, I too followed my mother. Sri Yadiyurappa explained that
he checked me and I am just like his granddaughter as he has 7
grand kids. Even though my mother objected for the thing
done by him with me repeatedly, even though he answered that
he want to check me just like that and I am like his grand-
daughter. At that time Sri Yadiyurappa asked my mother what
can be done by him. At that time my mother insisted him to
support our cases in order to have proper SIT investigation and
also insisted to support my mother’s cheating case in order to
get our share in cheated amount.

7. After having little bit conversation with him, he
pressed the buzzer and called the gunman inside and instructed
him to make phone call to Sri D.K. Shivakumar. Accordingly,
gunman ring up the phone call to Sri D.K. Shivakumar, but
other side phone call is not picked. Hence, Sri Yadiyurappa
assured us that he will make call to him and highlight the entire
case facts, then he will report to us. At that time my mother
asked his contact number, at that time he instructed my mother
to take cell number of his gunman Aradhya, accordingly
gunman gave his cell number. At that time my mother again
requested him as we suffered allot in number of cases, hence
he assured and advised to make phone call his gunman’s
phone, so that gunman will connect it with him immediately.
Thereafter he again advised us to come again if required. After
having talk with him, he immediately instructed his gunman to
make phone call to Commissioner Dayananda. Gunman made
phone call to Commissioner and he picked up the phone. At that
time Sri Yadiyurappa requested him by saying that he is
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sending one lady by name Mamatha and further said that she
suffered allot as nobody has supported them properly in order
to get adequate justice. Further he says that it is our duty to
support the victims towards getting of justice. Further he pokes
to the Commissioner that we have a genuine case, hence he
sending us to his office along with documents, so instructed him
to go through the documents and what help which is possible to
him to make favour. Further he instructed the Commissioner
after having talk with us, he has to report to Sri Yadiyurappa.
After cutting of phone call he instructed us to approach the
abovesaid Commissioner. At that time my mother told that, she
will not leave any police official or Minist4er who gave torture to
us. He says okey. Thereafter we took our bag and came out of
the house.

8. Then we came to bus stop and booked auto in order to
reach the abovesaid Commissioner office. While going by auto I
show the phone recording of phone to my mother and she
watched half of the recorded video and by saying that later on
she will see the remaining part. Immediately I took the phone
and saved abovesaid video in my Google cloud. We approached
the Commissioner office and my mother has narrated about
trading offence and previous POCSO case along with related
cases by having of documents and requested for proper SIT
investigation. After going through the documents orally they
assured as he will going through the documents in detail and he
will intimate us. But, at that time we never disclosed the
incident which was took place with me to that Commissioner.
Thereafter we went outside the office and went home.

9. Thereafter on 3™ and 4™ February when my mother
tried to make phone call to gunman of Sri Yadiyurappa by name
Aradhya, but gunman not responded properly nor picked our
phone call. Hence, on 4™ February itself one person by name
S.S. Hiremath friend of my mother instructed to approach the
Sri Yadiyurappa’s son by name Vijayendra. Accordingly, on 5%
February around about 11.00 a.m. we again approached house
of Sri Yadiyurappa, Dhavalagiri along with abovesaid
S.S.Hiremath in order to meet the Vijayendra. At that time
security guard stopped us by saying that, so many persons,
public along with media person are there inside, so he made us
to wait for some time. Then we went to abovesaid Starbucks
coffee shop were when I was sitting and Hiremath and my
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mother were standing at little distance. At that time my mother
narrated the entire incident to abovesaid S.S.Hiremath. We
waited for sometime and later on we went inside the house as
gunman instructed us to sit in basement where some chairs are
there. We waited for some time, meanwhile Vijayendra went
away on some work. Hence, it was not possible for us to talk
with the Vijayendra. But, we again approached the Sri
Yadiyurappa to talk further. We entered in to hall and Sri
Yadiyurappa was there sitting in the sofa. Myself and my
mother sat on sofa and abovesaid S.S. Hiremath was also
sitting on the separate chair. My mother told that, the above
said Aradhya gunman not picked her phone calls, therefore it
make us to come again to meet you, at that time Sri
Yadiyurappa replied that I already told us that he was helpless
but he instructed the concerned Commissioner to go through
the documents. Meanwhile, the S.S. Hiremath instructed one
person who is present there to take photo pics of us through
Hiremath’s phone. After taking photos Sri Yadiyurappa
repeatedly saying same thing as he is helpless and he
instructed through concerned Commissioner to take care of the
cases. Lastly we took another pics along with Sri Yadiyurappa
and came out of the housed. Later on, above said S.S.Hiremath
had send the photo pics to our phone later an we went home.

10. Later on, on 15-02-2024 my mother through online
lodged with the complaint to Hon’ble President and through e-
mail she send same complaint to Home Secretary and
Commissioner probably Dayanand. Because already some
persons were knowing above abovesaid recorded video made by
me as they were pressurizing us to send that video. But my
mother declined to publish it. When the pressure of the above
said was not tolerable at that time, my mother uploaded the
above said recorded video and screen shot copy of the
complaint in face book media. Thereafter on 16-02-2024 at the
evening time there was one phone call through unknown
number by name Rudresh by saying that, the son’s of the Sri
Yadiyurappa by name Raghavendra and Vijayendra want to
meet us. At that time my mother told that, today it is not
possible for us as we were very nearest to our house. Again he
insisted to come immediately, but my mother declined to obey
his instruction by saying that we will on tomorrow.
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11. On 17-02-2024 in the morning time abovesaid
Rudresh again made phone call by saying that, they are already
nearest to our house and went to meet us. Then my mother
invited him to come home. We are residing in apartment and
they were in the car near to our gate. We approached our gate
to invite where 2 persons were inside the car including Rudresh.
Then we requested them to come at garden which is existing
nearest the park which is existing within our compound gate.
Accordingly, we went in the park and sit in the bench, for safety
purpose we set our mobile recording. I do not know about that
Rudresh and another one by name Mariswamy. They get
introduced themselves. They sat on another bench. When they
normally talking with us I observed cleanly the above said
Mariswamy was capturing phone of us and recording was on.
Rudresh and my mother were talking and Rudresh told my
mother to approach the Sri Yadiyurappa’s son’s by name
Vijayendra and Raghavendra who where at home situated at
Dollar’s colony. My mother told as we were in simple dress, so
will come in proper dress. At that time, Rudresh told us, he will
want for us in park. Accordingly, went hone and get ready and
come outside. My mother made phone call to the PA of the
Vijayendra by name Arun and told about abovesaid Rudresh and
Mariswamy who have approached us, at that time Arun told us
that they both are belongs to them and instructed us to
accompany them. My mother told Rudresh that we will come
through auto cab, but he insisted to come with them through
their car. The diver and Rudresh were sat in front side, myself,
my mother and Mariswamy sat in backside of the Furtuner car.
While going in this car my mother recorded short video to show
our journey through their car. Then almost we were nearer to
the Dhavalagiri house, at that time Rudresh told us to enter the
Sri Yadiyurappa’s house through their rear door in order to
avoid the public and media agency. My mother insisted to enter
through front gate only. Accordingly, we went their house
through front gate. While getting down of the car we found no
person and public in front of the door. Apart entering into the
gate Rudresh told us to wait by sitting at basement.
Accordingly, we were sitting in the sofa at basement and
waiting. At that time Raghavendra came there and instructed
to Rudresh to take us through door which is existing at
basement through which we can enter inside the house.
Thereafter Raghavendra went inside the house. After sometime
Rudresh approached us to take inside the house. Accordingly,
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through staircase we entered inside the house. At that time, in
the hall nobody was there, the abovesaid Rudresh took us to
the room which was adjoining to the hall in which the previou9s
incident was taken place. Accordingly, we entered that room
where Sri Yadiyurappa and Raghavendra were sitting on the
sofa chair. But, as per assurance given by the Rudresh and Arun
we were about to meet the Raghavendra and Vijayendra son’s
the Sri Yadiyurappa. But, inside the room Sri Yadiyurappa and
Raghavendra were there. As per their instruction we sat on the
single sofa. Likewise Mariswamy and Rudresh were also came
and sitting on the another sofa. Before there sitting on sofa Sri
Yadiyurappa instructed them to keep aside the mobile phones
belongs to all of us. So I gave our phone to Rudresh who kept it
outside the room and closed the door after coming inside.
Meanwhile Sri Yadiyurappa instructed his cook Hanumanthu to
bring watermelon juice for all except him. Sri Yadiyurappa
insisting us to have a juice, but I declined to having juice as I
have doubt on them. But, he gave juice to my mother forcibly.
My mother was sipping juice slowly.

12. When my mother started to talk with Sri
Yadiyurappa, at that time he told that he already instructed the
concerned Commissioner to have fair investigation. My mother
told him that after visiting the Commissioner on 2" February
she has no updated information from the concerned
Commissioner. My mother narrated that she had visited number
of times and met to Sri Yadiyurappa for justice including other
politicians, but no required help provided by anybody including
NGO. My mother narrated that we met the Vijayendra in the
month of January 2024 at Shikaripura and submitted set of
documents. At that time Vijayendra told his PA Arun to keep
those documents in sealed condition in cover. Then, the
Raghavendra asked my mother is that so, by calling the PA
Arun instructed to being that document. Accordingly, Arun
brought the documents and gave it to the Raghavendra. He
verified the entire documents lightly and was asking about the
documents and my mother was narrating about documentation.
Sri Yadiyurappa assured us to support our cases by calling the
Commissioner their house and given required relief.
Accordingly, Sri Yadiyurappa instructed to have Rudresh
number and timely enquire about the case developments. The
Raghavendra said that we could not have put the videos on
facebook and ought not to have complaint to President.
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Meanwhile, Sri Yadiyurappa instructed abovesaid Rudresh to
delete all video clips which were recorded in our mobile.
Rudresh instructed abovesaid Arun to delete above said all
records and complaints from our phone. Accordingly, Arun
brought my mothers phone inside the room and opened the
phone and deleted the screen shot of the complaint was lodged
to the Hon’ble President including videos by entering into my
mother’s facebook account. He also verified phone gallery in
order to deletion of recordings and screenshot complaints and
videos. After deletion of all those evidences he kept it outside.
He too insisted to delete the complaint which was lodged before
the President and the e-mail complaint lodged before the
Secretary, at that time my mother replied that, Sri Yadiyurappa
has committed blunder, so declined to delete those evidences.
But in my mobile we have recorded the conversation with Sri
Yadiyurappa held on 2" February remained intact as I did not
have taken my phone with me. Thereafter we stood up go out
of the house, at that time Sri Yadiyurappa who was sitting on
chair nearby table on which one Mini bag was kept, that has
been offered to us. When my mother objected for is, at that
time Sri Yadiyurappa told as we have problems, so he requested
to take that bag. My mother not agreed to take that bag s we
are fighting for justice since more than 9 years period. I too
requested them to leave us without such offer. At that time all
were insisted us to sit on the sofa and forced to take that bag.
At that time I requested them to issue some acknowledgement
regarding giving money to us. Finally they insisted to take
money in the form of loan including the amount what which
given by Sri Yadiyurappa on 2-02-2024. Likewise, Sri
Yadiyurappa also insisted to accept it as a loan along with
previous amount given by him. In turn I insisted them to given
acknowledgement in written to that effect, but they not agreed
to do so. As per instruction of Sri Yadiyurappa above said
Rudresh took that bag and kept it in our bag pack. While going
out from the house, Sri Yadiyurappa told us to inform any
information to the abovesaid Rudresh over phone. While going
out, Rudresh instructed us to go through their Fortuner car and
accordingly, their driver gave lift to us for about half of the
distance. Thereafter we get down from their car and picked the
bus. Thereafter we gave our phones to the CID officers
including cash bag which was given on 17-02-2024 and cash
given on 2-02-2024. Entirely we gave amount of ¥35,000/- to
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the CID offices as they asked to submit them towards collection
of evidence.

13. Hence, based abovesaid narrated facts and
circumstances I lodged with the complaint against the above
said Sri Yadiyurappa. Hence, it is my humble request to take
appropriate legal action against him.

The above said facts are true.

Sd/- 26-03-2024
Signature of the Victim. R.O0.I and A.C.
Sd/- XXV A.C.M.M.,
Bengaluru.”

(Emphasis added)

There is a vivid narration of the incident by the victim about what
all has happened on that day. Now the issue is statements under
Section 161 of the Cr.P.C. being pitted against the statement of the
victim under Section 164 of the Cr.P.C., it is statement vs.
statement. What would outweigh the other is not the stage, at
which this Court in exercise of its jurisdiction under Section 482 of
the Cr.P.C., would consider. Such consideration of quashment of
the proceedings, relying on the statement under Section 161 of the
Cr.P.C. or under Section 164 of the Cr.P.C. is only under rare and
exceptional circumstances, when such statements would clearly

indicate a further proceeding to become an abuse of the process of
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the law or resulting in patent injustice. It is no law that those
statements should not be looked into at all, at the time of
quashment of the proceedings under Section 482 of the Cr.P.C.
The inherent powers are wide enough to do so, but they can be
exercised on a case to case basis, when exceptions of the kind
noted hereinabove are present, which would be to prevent
miscarriage of justice. I do not find any such threat of miscarriage
of justice seen in the entire proceeding. There is also an audio
transcript of the conversation between the petitioner and the first
informant, what is relevant need to be quoted. The relevant

transcript is as follows:

“ord: 03T R [RIRHT

S00W:

DoT: VIV T W

X: 3

Spe: axrt Contact =»azmsy

X: T T

DRY: —————m

X: WA, AT DT AROP WOLTRY

VEB: WOLTT

DY 2,0 R Meet Spwwse
TOIT: 20T VDR VO WOTE WOTD VNR

X: TRen® R

D QG WD

DT WTRW AGe VWY, VT AT SRRY, AP wR ITIROR Been
THINT: WYR ITEROR TREN AT TINRRQ, ¥T



ﬁdg:

IS:
ENINEN d
mms
VX

52

dedh R Jerd wos

s, mm&mf QBOR VT

WYR T wER 3 TOSTOBY W0z

13T, BRI agont

efofm wérﬁ dmd@e BHROT L0F VPLATE.

®R ai:a 200° AWR ée@ea geeh, Jedent 3&3 3Rdnelen, S8, mwm
7 us BT, Boww z..esc s;an WTeh, Jee T, e.—amf aémn AR o) zm@
o0 236 ot m@;a.

D3 oxd Blouse w9t 3 ZosnEsy wam

aﬁan%'%:

IE:
IE:

ﬁdg:

WIE:

?chﬁeef)es:
Zﬁebf\)"eﬁes:

NVENICE

@@N’eﬁdz

NVENICE

@@N’eﬁdz

3!

?chﬁeef)es:

IE:

waﬁig:

AVINMCH

QLR =0

o STERLRCE

VI QPTR PORTe  TPHFE, SRERTD

(Do) 534 mm@ne: agone 30w z.,e%e DTN 8T TRE =R mod§
a.,e%cmmg, e wedoe T TZCH TRRED U WRET, Secréne
o

%oR Gt BTeok TPRETD 9 TIFQOT BT TRRD WIS |, hed
NOC 3r¢3m3 S, CoBTT 9Ne CROTT. W DT, YOI LT NET,
QO O w0 Ted.

B WO IJNES 3T Teed T [PREQ

338 oo aBx vep SIT Form s»a, Axe” aganiews

0333 03POR BT R, IWOR [PRYET.

ey XpTETTR  OEEE BT SNTRE RE, FOIRET  INE WO
VRN, QDD OF°.0.8 FOITF [TPRODY B3 3T TY DT, VTOD
n$ oM 98, IY ex wloy ¥ LT D JRF INE  Beved.
54 TOT W IPEF YW, 54 WAT TS TRFTF AB... -

QT BRTEesen TeW

st SIT Form =wn@, 2xe’ oFafeR® We, wFAReRT vt T
25 RBon JROCT TRD CRONT N WPRTONY TR ST RS T ﬁmsaﬁa@
MO TETD S8ne S8, 8 2908 DN 30003 IeLieS. T sy ©o3
TR FemeT?

T BONT, [RRE WW.

e Segdended ey F[recdeadesd JeR) 3&@@% ey IIA

TR RV Fewd ¢ z..e% DTN W[, TR Jeccde ¥ Tsecd

CIRPTe TWIBR, BT “03RCRYONRT WHEATY™ TN W8

Do edee DT [PRER

VTR, T BONT, BRAD
TORE, ©Y

VBT, WABTR WRBVROWODTTE IPRTOT TeYT

wmoied VO I, wif DR DY, Create SH



53

w@ﬁﬁd:ém rmﬂégme
a‘:)emfdd: 03300 IJegededd 3N
DE: ‘Jw——dé& e

D), TR SR Irody ay @od central ooz Bndx, Beg By

IPS officer AZZOIROBTRT 20T BRI NS, I0 Red 2TYRROBTT
w@#aﬁéz SELNIEMNONZINY é)uojasgﬁ BITOW D,
DIWT: T VIR FRLOI T 9T, VBY VRHOW TRRFINATIND, AN I,
DONONR 20F e:sfld.
a‘mm@ﬁdz 5501 RDOLRO T JReRED DB FZOD TRRJ

DT TR WIWOLOB 30D A, WNYSTIIe IBRIRY, I, protection
Qe [RBED ST FO T Y WOLHD

RRFTWy: DORTY T IRERED T VT ISIRFTReICR, YT BiiRe DY
TBODE, TPECD SOIR.

DIT: IIN VRO L0 BNT IIN

WOTF: DT, Feey ReTIHE qoudkowr vtose A to Z explain snatoiw
OBWD e TN BT RPTYIW, 0IPT FTR, AT ZR0TTY BRBY
RO B[pwED

DB Dey 3T, SIT S T Feeh 9Y[e 3RRD STHTPO YRR
Qe
RRFTH; IVPIPT TY, T DY, I ITVTJRT T, BIVTOW

D: Vexy Opposition IY ageom support SwBEeEy ey I

RPRTT BN ————— %93@ SHEIS)
a‘:)emfdd: 233 STDRVON 37&@@5@
NS O,
EI: T

RRFTHy; BTT e TTWOOTEOR, 3BIET AI,.

DWT: VT TT LY OIPTR, BRREFE IRRCORTY 2.0)T¢ TIIN OTR, WLOTT,
80 DBFO" TRERT, ¢, TPRTT Lt YO TT BPRITS IIN VO,
FRITD STTCRT SN SIRT WOT TRA TR TRCBRNL
TRENQ CA———————— PR O, IFF, T AWWIRIEI. D T
SoUWPN  WOOIP®  ©OZ WF IOt VTWEONYOT, AT — [POH @oS.
Bese BeBT DOZOTY TVOSE W|HWOLF FOTPWVT DY [PWT. I, T

tPNIR WO WTFFOW ©Y WO T WL, BeereS, 2 now 3

notd 0egoRY, oBROTIY R wotieode ade Day time «9
BRTFER JwpeTen
VTR BRWD e BN

WTNT: WONY O w@eécr_op.



Y

A\ 4 VV VYV V

YV V V V

YV V V V V V VY

54

DO — PN WO WRESTT. & M RN FRODY 2.08¢ BTY
DITQY

dé — BOTRS BN QTLIeRD
BF 0 DN WBH 0IPYTIR,

RO - VTIe BewY. VB zﬁecsme 93T O3RTY It BROTI
BRLTOTRE BT D0F BRIET BPETTT BN 0T BT
WIFT SR @admsdmi T e
VTR QOWT AT 9 JIRFOOT IIF, WiRY SNY
90T TBOT T BT WRRTWIBWDD Y

By - SPODF VT ———————————

QN0 - 9 THF
[IR Tawewo FeBNE BT
Jort ADBeewrr JRAW, MEFONSY
BT W) BT, TPONF TR B O ERWERN WO ©T
BRFT HBROBDED T
T, WFIR cIPT 0ed Ty WOE AFHT R TRRITEY
T I D), R QoY @mglem m@aé SISD)

What kind of society are we going to create, how safe
our children are

DO - BRI NeTONY RO
dé - To. . .
)
dé

©RT INESOONY, WOTWA® WBTE WIVFLITOTD

OTPIJPTN [RTHRT S To TN Feed TPR Teve.
TREN 23683 TP ARW) ARRZT, VONR TWOLRT, BIRE.

QN0 — JIIN 20553@_4 TOWT® 2BeBD
Ty, T @Zb@%w FOOLRE, [WRE T [TeeR

IT, Y IRWT BY T, SOWT ERW

wI, IRF” B

BT — AW II AT, BRLE

R0 - WFT ¥ WIROT WRED. VRV

ST, BT IEOT W, 253¢ 0 BRITD IR,

BT — 66%35 eSNT.

R0 — BYIT B

- N T, BIT O3RW/ TOWT YTe WO.

wde @3Y Jowoodee S, @IRQ,0W Jowo
D, — BB O Aroyciee BT

ARy, SoT* Te® I3

O, B30 Rweed oF @y, DO

&
e}
1

&
e}
I

e &
e}
I 1



YV V V V V

A\

vV V V V V

55

BT - AW eﬂd)bsci) Eﬂd)b 03 orReD

PO - Ben BFODY

@ - 7348998962

RO~ BOG BOITH?

R - B J0T° 17 ol
B [o0T° Josd) 23eoes STR
3R, TY VE,

Q0 -

dgj - w@s@ﬁé 903 aadf%va“ms
3D 083, Sort I, Ierdhz9d

D0 — IJ¥ OFe BeoBT B AR, AT Foek Fyole
@, - anytime you can telephone to me 8: Jo20° 1§ reEwe

5ot @R, 0t T 230 eI

T O Bob, erdeled e T SraBede
R0 - VoD DBOTY T
B, - OTD[PT BIO @) B, ------

Aed BBDD 903 HeT0W.
3 - oFR3wy Jord Dozl
D0 - TS T DI AL efed B BN Tord WeS Bty DB, S}
DBBYE TR /W, DT MRST vy IeETY FO&' TQuoDd  Feeld  IF[HaO

Pd Bue Poled =3l SIB [T O, Domy @D, IIR 03T 00

SR TR AFLWTW €O

¥ - ©o3 TZB W)

R0 - T DD B7 B, Sp0BT Ierd, Bniw, 83 IF

S, 0= 80 4 B3 8ITea” 8NF &3 @’ 8NT.

dgj - 0dude?

R0 - DTRRTTY VIS B3

R0 - I, DA BSTeII* 8N

R TnaTclsial ik laplep

R0 — B szssﬁ SNB------- F9CRYT OB B8 Todh 9 IArdoT ewdr.....
e DWRFERD DD GO BeeN b Wedd Worde,0r wol VSD Fabees Fyorzed
alye303, police department @03 entire police department @zoR
instructions &peNBood, BT FpDeTF FedT* 1§ @) IO ‘35% ®3) 208
30ne 1edd. va) 30 woBe Wore S8BT V8 WD oW OFF.0.80° Taly)

959,28



A\ vV V V V Y

vV V V V V V V V V V

A\

«0

56

- adde vy oSBT ToJ).
- OB o) VO AW, &Feed BBReN 3. JBaDeoT T,
ox) IO 2feed TatQe
- PO, AeD TP oSBT WSS So e
- TR @oeme B3 20Be)
SR, 7083 2e3dse 2008
- OF, 23 ozl w3Be Ly,
- QY Bowe IS TrozeBe
- Dozoldab
- B dey) Chief Minister emmoms APITRFBY D, BSe 20T

Foza8ReN. TadD Ze3T 20w Jwodeor ey Be3T 0B

5o3e0r8 2007 FO° o) WeBol TeP) 2,0 Td
- 2,00 To0 o @de 00Be
SR, 7083 2ed 2016-17
- 097 Bped IIF 00T
BB IRF Foc3edr 00
- — HoB Qwodd TToee e, WeIteD BeVT
- &, i adpomd Su
- ®o... JO° &, draled
- DIeer ToD Welroer oSl ed 903
- $0..70 IO
- ey Chief Minister esoong 2008ed @%b opposition party @so
- 87 ot Iyoleyy,
- e odrodrine e ol TePT W e
- oedrie
- BpOeF Jeaxr 1§ BRI 17 BeRD),
BN BoTTR ZY. DAL BTTT* JIyoBe)
- B B0 YT Ve,
- By T,
RpOexr D BT deedB, ToJ dorie
- OR) FFF IDed wHR WD FRT pages ¥ it is not a parallel post

office o = BRRED A RBFTBY @Rmd@ﬁfa B8e00 ©dod it is just
autograph ®d 393Qe00 ea@e. That is what is happening. This is not why



YV V VYV V

Y V

57

we are coming to your place because ¢ local police station ©9 oo

even commissioner i3 @oefed

3 commissioner 17 &= Bewas.

D0 — D AABTF HodFe 0F.0.80° 1§ B,;035° 3ol 20 8ozl BalreSon’.

By - BaeSon’ agfe DT,

R0 - BOVHYR, S8BT Fodee* Il &, B I, Drive &ort Tz DD
B0 ¥Tpemy 9 IaF VDR II0 TogF, Fevt B VDIW Toh oW BT
2,00 ToEFT BRENY 20T BT 20T I OTe BID RAEY. o7 Tor
BeITo BT, Ty o3 By BV oBWING; 20T Tewadriee
e3r3eede) SO,

By - BaeSon® agfe DR,

R0 - T VTR, BBT PIBIe ABYSY T wedoes® e’ ©§ madhoes®

DoeF 1§ o), <O Dee odY), v@) IO 0F, Ieled @) IO ETeeNed WD

) efeed Iyore).

3 - 0 .. BodoSor e e

R0 — odyodh 2feed Wody O¢.. I WIS WYY ©WoB BewyT.

S SO calm &b eze8338 Bewad e Bed) IeToges.

20038300 JroSoreled.
VO — 20D AT

N0 - 5 Jodeord Sodd,
]:, i 6 ISFd Db seNodse suffer esmy adobe.
S R Todh TedbABeWRT Bevmed. DT vIFe), wowd responsible
3od 30, DB,IT 083 &3, B DD OD o@W), JoTeD IF), BLCTER
Svoddeede 3w,
- oD AT 20T OT,;TF Iordeerd VFLT Jedh arde &Jeed IR
Sareresmed short &h om It AWITY AHD, By Ied0aET, they
will not take it seriously calm ef o B Sedoe &3
IoToreedD.
R - IO IDI, ONROWRTT ToBeT DIWT AT
N0 - eY AT o8, BT,

BRTIOW OTD BeVTW) OF.20.63 FaBe o3 2,0 ST 30 BRI
3y - o saBw,
20 - oY eid B gdee Government ege T2a,
D - VO IDI [O°



Y VYV

A\

YV V V V VYV V

%
)

%

«0

«0

%

58

JO° I TO°
- J0° IO° Jo°
TO° ODRORRTFH, ToHeDT DIWOT TFO° T, ByoSaw0
rSjod
- O3
- BARIT® ToBEAT BAOI0* THT
- Bodro30n’ ©ITe, ORRONRTT WWoTlBed SFT,T.
DT 03 TeYLY, VBTI 30LIBRBL, aBY S0Pt JBRoBTIe wBdY
©J90h 8NT I0rte wrodh ©=0rie SO Fpees’r By, Ib, Bt /T
WTTT, Fees FBBHR VTV, B, oBdee VOIS, HNSe FLATRTL T
BATIO® BTN DT o3 200, WY YD rfewr® v ¥id Dieded,
3D ©3T DD 20T, BALAEY, To0BTN VIV o Bev Ded), WIOT T
Derled) DI Tozo® Jort 3V-BeR. Genuine case ad wBBe,eT,3 Toxd
AT Tewy VTR ToxD mmq@a o0ne e N By AT
Fed3 exf o, BDHIBREE), DS o3 TeY ), L BTN, BLRIO®
e3dedT ®eed
- To. . . 8eT pedt ol
- e Teped Bew),, ¥TD O Iemadee Iod,
O, B3 e Tomd.
- I3 BREd S0 Doy VDD VTR, 2O
- B3V A, Ded..
BWBEIC* BT short eH o=b evyedh 8HS e Bew.
- B3RS BN Dozl.
— DB Deed Je) B 3R S020T° 1T 3B TR I3
OD BePTD o3
- 30
- 8%edd Jod Poedee T el Aor Tevew.
- 3R 8H ozl
- 99 P oge .. .. but omn 03 ameodhy WBYR Feod3 saly.
- 2y Don't worry I will take care.
338 1 am very ©cde,58 ad) dwod 33 i eded face
Dogdedee o3 Fab 8N
- 230 Teeh BB, JoD B ByrEes. Tod Beded, ToH SHoah Byores.



59

> 20 - 838 Jod ad e, conviction s Jey DI Y case IV, I
DBY FeTFIY @ ey, conviction 3, N3P 98 JeIFF Beod
Iews. o oI dud, eny. e DZD mentally distruct ed full life

Toworh3.
> dé - B0 TR 23e25D) dmdfaéemv" £a§3r§’ DoSBD 3eB. BN @R

commissioner 83, short sh Seso. 8533 8HS chRODRTT BID
B0 Botd) W03 BEW
esedd 8 So0° 1§ Fpes® o) TDH O TePDY o3

» Q0 - 30
> 20 - T I, Dive w03 @ I want to bring out the truth ede
> & -1 will give support.
> 0 - ok
> dé - 200D B8RV,
DO %) DAY
BCROW Bweern
> Q0 — esain.”

(Enphasi s added)

The conversation is sent to FSL. The FSL confirms the voice is that
of the petitioner and also confirms the fact that it is not morphed or
the mobile was subject of hacking. Since it is a report of the FSL,
taking note of the same cannot lead to establishment of the guilt.
It has to be tested in evidence. Therefore, these matters would

undoubtedly require to be thrashed out in a full-blown trial.

11. This Court would have on the basis of what is considered

hereinabove rejected the petition. But the subsequent act to all
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these is by the concerned Court where it takes cognizance of the
offences. The bald, laconic and cryptic order of the concerned
Court is what merits the partial entertainment of the petition. As
observed hereinabove, there are statements made by the
prosecution withesses, there are statements made by the victim.
While cognizance of the offence, the concerned Court ought to have

applied its mind and then issued process.

12. The order of cognizance is quoted supra. The concerned
Courts would take cognizance under Section 190(1)(b) of the
Cr.P.C. and under Section 204 of the Cr.P.C. issue
summons/process to the accused. Therefore, it becomes germane

to notice Section 204 of the Cr.P.C. It reads as follows:

“204. Issue of process.—(1) If in the opinion of a
Magistrate taking cognizance of an offence there is sufficient
ground for proceeding, and the case appears to be—

(a) a summons-case, he shall issue his summons for the
attendance of the accused, or

(b) a warrant-case, he may issue a warrant, or, if he
thinks fit, a summons, for causing the accused to be brought
or to appear at a certain time before such Magistrate or (if he
has no jurisdiction himself) some other Magistrate having
jurisdiction.

(2) No summons or warrant shall be issued against the
accused under sub-section (1) until a list of the prosecution
witnesses has been filed.
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(3) In a proceeding instituted upon a complaint made in
writing, every summons or warrant issued under sub-section
(1) shall be accompanied by a copy of such complaint.

(4) When by any law for the time being in force any
process-fees or other fees are payable, no process shall be
issued until the fees are paid and, if such fees are not paid
within a reasonable time, the Magistrate may dismiss the
complaint.

(5) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to affect the
provisions of Section 87.”

Section 204 requires sufficient ground for proceeding against the
accused, which would mean the Court has to examine existence of
sufficient grounds to proceed against the accused and then proceed
to issue process. This act, undoubtedly requires application of
mind, on the part of the learned Magistrate or the Court of Sessions
as the case would be, as the provision itself mandates existence of
sufficient ground for proceeding. Therefore, it can be only on
perusal of the material on record and consideration thereof, not an

order which depicts the Court to be a post office to the prosecution.

13. The interpretation of Section 204 and whether an order of
taking cognizance and issuance of process, needs to bear
application of mind or not, need not detain this Court for long or

delve deep into the matter. The answer lies in the judgments relied
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on by the learned senior counsel for the petitioner. On the other

hand, the learned senior counsel for the respondent/CID has also

placed reliance upon plethora of judgments to contend that the

order of taking cognizance need not bear application of mind, when

it is being taken upon a Police report. The judgments so relied by

the learned counsel for respondent/CID, are as follows:

()

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

STATE OF WEST BENGAL v. MOHD. KHALID & OTHERS
- (1995) 1 SCC 684 - Paras 78 & 81;

ANIL SARAN v. STATE OF BIHAR AND ANOTHER
- (1995) 6 SCC 142 - para 5;

BHAGAT RAM v. SURINDER KUMAR AND OTHERS
- (2004) 11 SCC 622 - para 4;

AJITH KAMAR PALIT v. STATE OF WEST BENGAL AND
ANOTHER - 1962 SCC OnLine SC 80 - para 19;

R.R. CHARI v. STATE OF UTTAR PRADESH
- 1951 SCC 250 - paras 6 and 15;

JAGDISH RAM v. STATE OF RAJASTHAN AND ANOTHER
- (2004) 4 SCC 432 - Para 10;

BHUSHAN KUMAR AND ANOTHER v. STATE (NCT OF
DELHI) & ANOTHER
- (2012) 5 SCC 424 - paras 13 & 17;

RAJENDRA RAJORIYA v. JAGAT NARAIN THAPAK AND
ANOTHER - (2018) 17 SCC 234 - para 16;

AJAY KUMAR PARMAR v. STATE OF RAJASTHAN
- (2012) 12 SCC 406 -Para 13;
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(x) RASHMI KUMAR v. MAHESH KUMAR BHADA
- (1997) 2 SCC 397 - para 14 and

(xi) STATE OF BIHAR v. RAJENDRA AGARWALLA
- (1996)8 SCC 164 - para 5.

There can no qualm about the principles so laid down by the Apex
Court in the afore-quoted judgments. But, much water has flown
after the judgments relied on by the learned senior counsel for the
respondent, by way of elucidation by the Apex Court, on the issue
of orders of cognizance and issuance of process. I deem it
appropriate to note the entire spectrum of law, right from 1951 till
this day, with regard to the interpretation by the Apex Court on

orders of taking cognizance and issuance of summons/process.

14(a). JAGDISH RAM v. STATE OF RAJASTHAN':-

“10. The contention urged is that though the trial court
was directed to consider the entire material on record including
the final report before deciding whether the process should be
issued against the appellant or not, yet the entire material was
not considered. From perusal of order passed by the Magistrate
it cannot be said that the entire material was not taken into
consideration. The order passed by the Magistrate taking
cognizance is a well-written order. The order not only refers to
the statements recorded by the police during investigation
which led to the filing of final report by the police and the

1(2004) 4 SCC 432
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statements of witnesses recorded by the Magistrate under
Sections 200 and 202 of the Code but also sets out with clarity
the principles required to be kept in mind at the stage of taking
cognizance and reaching a prima facie view. At this stage, the
Magistrate had only to decide whether sufficient ground
exists or not for further proceeding in the matter. It is
well settled that notwithstanding the opinion of the
police, a Magistrate is empowered to take cognizance if
the material on record makes out a case for the said
purpose. The investigation is the exclusive domain of the
police. The taking of cognizance of the offence is an area
exclusively within the domain of a Magistrate. At this
stage, the Magistrate has to be satisfied whether there is
sufficient ground for proceeding and not whether there is
sufficient ground for conviction. Whether the evidence is
adequate for supporting the conviction, can be determined only
at the trial and not at the stage of inquiry. At the stage of
issuing the process to the accused, the Magistrate is not
required to record reasons. (Dy. Chief Controller of Imports &
Exports v. Roshanlal Agarwal [(2003) 4 SCC 139 : 2003 SCC
(Cri) 788]1.)"
(Emphasis supplied)

14(b). BHUSHAN KUMAR v. STATE (NCT OF DELHI)%:-

“11. In Chief Enforcement Officer v. Videocon
International Ltd. [(2008) 2 SCC 492 : (2008) 1 SCC (Cri)
471] (SCC p. 499, para 19) the expression “cognizance”
was explained by this Court as it merely means ‘become
aware of’ and when used with reference to a court or a
Judge, it connotes ‘to take notice of judicially’. It
indicates the point when a court or a Magistrate takes
judicial notice of an offence with a view to initiating
proceedings in respect of such offence said to have been
committed by someone.” It is entirely a different thing
from initiation of proceedings; rather it is the condition
precedent to the initiation of proceedings by the
Magistrate or the Judge. Cognizance is taken of cases and
not of persons. Under Section 190 of the Code, it is the

2(2012) 5 SCC 424
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application of judicial mind to the averments in the
complaint that constitutes cognizance. At this stage, the
Magistrate has to be satisfied whether there is sufficient
ground for proceeding and not whether there is sufficient
ground for conviction. Whether the evidence is adequate
for supporting the conviction can be determined only at
the trial and not at the stage of enquiry. If there is
sufficient ground for proceeding then the Magistrate is
empowered for issuance of process under Section 204 of the
Code.

18. In U.P. Pollution Control Board v. Bhupendra Kumar
Modi [(2009) 2 SCC 147 : (2009) 1 SCC (Cri) 679] this Court, in
para 23, held as under: (SCC p. 154)

“23. It is a settled legal position that at the
stage of issuing process, the Magistrate is mainly
concerned with the allegations made in the
complaint or the evidence led in support of the
same and he is only to be prima facie satisfied
whether there are sufficient grounds for proceeding
against the accused.”

19. This being the settled legal position, the order passed
by the Magistrate could not be faulted with only on the ground
that the summoning order was not a reasoned order.”

(Emphasis supplied)

14(c). STATE OF GUJARAT v. AFROZ MOHAMMED
HASANFATTA>:-

“16. It is well settled that at the stage of issuing process,
the Magistrate is mainly concerned with the allegations
made in the complaint or the evidence led in support of
the same and the Magistrate is only to be satisfied that
there are sufficient grounds for proceeding against the

3(2019) 20 SCC 539
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accused. It is fairly well settled that when issuing
summons, the Magistrate need not explicitly state the
reasons for his satisfaction that there are sufficient
grounds for proceeding against the accused. Reliance was
placed upon Bhushan Kumar v. State (NCT of Delhi) [Bhushan
Kumar v. State (NCT of Delhi), (2012) 5 SCC 424 : (2012) 2
SCC (Cri) 872] wherein it was held as under : (SCC pp. 428-29,
paras 11-13)

“11. 1In Chief Enforcement Officer v. Videocon
International Ltd. [Chief Enforcement Officer
v. Videocon International Ltd., (2008) 2 SCC 492:
(2008) 1 SCC (Cri) 471] (SCC p. 499, para 19) the
expression “cognizance” was explained by this Court as
“it merely means ‘become aware of’ and when used with
reference to a court or a Judge, it connotes ‘to take
notice of judicially’. It indicates the point when a court
or a Magistrate takes judicial notice of an offence with a
view to initiating proceedings in respect of such offence
said to have been committed by someone.' It is entirely
a different thing from initiation of proceedings; rather it
is the condition precedent to the initiation of proceedings
by the Magistrate or the Judge. Cognizance is taken of
cases and not of persons. Under Section 190 of the
Code, it is the application of judicial mind to the
averments in the complaint that constitutes cognizance.
At this stage, the Magistrate has to be satisfied whether
there is sufficient ground for proceeding and not
whether there is sufficient ground for conviction.
Whether the evidence is adequate for supporting the
conviction can be determined only at the trial and not at
the stage of enquiry. If there is sufficient ground for
proceeding then the Magistrate is empowered for
issuance of process under Section 204 of the Code.

12. A “summons” is a process issued by a court
calling upon a person to appear before a Magistrate. It is
used for the purpose of notifying an individual of his
legal obligation to appear before the Magistrate as a
response to violation of law. In other words, the
summons will announce to the person to whom it is
directed that a legal proceeding has been started against
that person and the date and time on which the person
must appear in court. A person who is summoned is
legally bound to appear before the court on the given
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date and time. Wilful disobedience is liable to be
punished under Section 174 IPC. It is a ground for
contempt of court.

13. Section 204 of the Code does not mandate
the Magistrate to explicitly state the reasons for
issuance of summons. It clearly states that if in the
opinion of a Magistrate taking cognizance of an offence,
there is sufficient ground for proceeding, then the
summons may be issued. This section mandates the
Magistrate to form an opinion as to whether there exists
a sufficient ground for summons to be issued but it is
nowhere mentioned in the section that the explicit
narration of the same is mandatory, meaning thereby
that it is not a prerequisite for deciding the validity of
the summons issued.”

(emphasis supplied)

21.In para 21 of Mehmood Ul Rehman [Mehmood Ul
Rehman v. Khazir Mohammad Tunda, (2015) 12 SCC 420 :
(2016) 1 SCC (Cri) 124] , this Court has made a fine distinction
between taking cognizance based upon charge-sheet filed by
the police under Section 190(1)(b) CrPC and a private complaint
under Section 190(1)(a) CrPC and held as under : (SCC p. 430)

“21. Under Section 190(1)(b) CrPC, the
Magistrate has the advantage of a police report and
under Section 190(1)(c) CrPC, he has the information or
knowledge of commission of an offence. But under
Section 190(1)(a) CrPC, he has only a complaint before
him. The Code hence specifies that “a complaint of facts
which constitute such offence”. Therefore, if the
complaint, on the face of it, does not disclose the
commission of any offence, the Magistrate shall not take
cognizance under Section 190(1)(a) CrPC. The complaint
is simply to be rejected.”

22. In summoning the accused, it is not necessary
for the Magistrate to examine the merits and demerits of
the case and whether the materials collected is adequate
for supporting the conviction. The court is not required to
evaluate the evidence and its merits. The standard to be



68

adopted for summoning the accused under Section 204
CrPC is not the same at the time of framing the charge.
For issuance of summons under Section 204 CrPC, the
expression used is “there is sufficient ground for
proceeding...”; whereas for framing the charges, the
expression used in Sections 240 and 246 IPC is “there is
ground for presuming that the accused has committed an
offence...”. At the stage of taking cognizance of the
offence based upon a police report and for issuance of
summons under Section 204 CrPC, detailed enquiry
regarding the merits and demerits of the case is not
required. The fact that after investigation of the case, the
police has filed charge-sheet along with the materials
thereon may be considered as sufficient ground for
proceeding for issuance of summons under Section 204
CrPC.

23. Insofar as taking cognizance based on the
police report is concerned, the Magistrate has the
advantage of the charge-sheet, statement of withesses
and other evidence collected by the police during the
investigation. Investigating officer/SHO collects the
necessary evidence during the investigation conducted in
compliance with the provisions of the Criminal Procedure
Code and in accordance with the rules of investigation.
Evidence and materials so collected are sifted at the level
of the investigating officer and thereafter, charge-sheet
was filed. In appropriate cases, opinion of the Public
Prosecutor is also obtained before filing the charge-
sheet. The court thus has the advantage of the police
report along with the materials placed before it by the
police. Under Section 190(1)(b) CrPC, where the Magistrate
has taken cognizance of an offence upon a police report and the
Magistrate is satisfied that there is sufficient ground for
proceeding, the Magistrate directs issuance of process. In case
of taking cognizance of an offence based upon the police report,
the Magistrate is not required to record reasons for issuing the
process. In cases instituted on a police report, the Magistrate is
only required to pass an order issuing summons to the accused.
Such an order of issuing summons to the accused is based upon
subject to satisfaction of the Magistrate considering the police
report and other documents and satisfying himself that there is
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sufficient ground for proceeding against the accused. In a case
based upon the police report, at the stage of issuing the
summons to the accused, the Magistrate is not required to
record any reason. In case, if the charge-sheet is barred by law
or where there is lack of jurisdiction or when the charge-sheet
is rejected or not taken on file, then the Magistrate is required
to record his reasons for rejection of the charge-sheet and for
not taking it on file.

(Emphasis supplied)

14(d). SRI S.C.JAYACHANDRA V. STATE

KARNATAKA®:-

“12. I have perused the aforesaid judgments. By applying
the principles laid down by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in the
judgments stated supra and on perusal of the case on hand, the
trial Court while taking cognizance and issuing process, has
passed the following order:

“The Karnataka Lokayuktha City Division, Bengaluru
have filed the charge sheet against the accused, that the
accused has made total assets of 32,27,13,936/-. And his
total expenditure is ¥1,71,95,040/-. The total of assets and
expenditure comes to ¥3,99,08,976/-. The income of the
accused and his family from all sources is ¥2,02,50,007/-.
The accused from 1-02-1985 to 18-12-2008 working as
Chief Engineer of Hemavathi Project, Goruru, Hassan as on
18-12-2008, has made disproportionate assets of total
1,96,58,969/- i.e., 97.08% and committed offence
punishable u/s 13(1)(e) r/w 13(2) of Prevention of
Corruption Act, 1988.

2. The prosecution has produced the fresh Sanction
dated 20-03-2019, authorization dated 17-12-2008, F.I.R.,
Source Report, P.F., Panchanama dated 23-12-2008,
Panchanama dated 18-12-2008, property documents,
Panchanama dated 18-12-2008 and other documents.

3. Perused the documents.

* Criminal Revision Petition No.1479 of 2019/29 decided 18 May 2020

OF



70

4. Found prima facie case, Cognizance is taken.
Register the case as Special Case, and issue summons to
accused returnable by 27-05-2019.”

14. Keeping in view the principles laid down by the
Hon’ble Supreme Court in the latest dictum stated supra, here
in this case, the Lokayuktha Police filed the charge sheet and
the Trial Court while taking cognizance need not pass
detailed order and hence issuing process under Section
204 of Cr.P.C by taking cognizance under Section
190(a)(b) of Cr.P.C would attract. Therefore, there is no
illegality committed by the trial Court while issuing
process against the petitioner and it cannot be said that
there is no application of mind by the trial Court. Even
otherwise, the trial Court considered the documents and
proceeded to issue process after satisfaction of the same
Judge who passed the order of discharge on the earlier
occasion. Therefore, the arguments of learned senior counsel
Sri C.V. Nagesh cannot be accepted. Accordingly, I answer the
Point No.1 in favour of Lokayuktha Police and against the
accused.

19. Accordingly, the Criminal Revision Petition is
dismissed. The trial Court is directed to proceed with the trial
against the accused and dispose of the mater in accordance
with law.”

(Emphasis supplied)

14(e). PRADEEP S. WODEYAR v. STATE OF
KARNATAKA:-

“C.5. Cognizance order and non-application of mind

76. The counsel for the appellant has contended that the
order of the Special Judge taking cognizance has not sufficiently

5(2021) 19 SCC 62
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demonstrated application of mind to the material placed before
him. To substantiate this contention, the appellant relied on the
decisions in Pepsi Foods Ltd. v. Special Judicial
Magistrate [Pepsi Foods Ltd. v. Special Judicial Magistrate,
(1998) 5 SCC 749 : 1998 SCC (Cri) 1400] , Fakhruddin
Ahmad v. State of Uttaranchal [Fakhruddin Ahmad v. State of
Uttaranchal, (2008) 17 SCC 157 : (2010) 4 SCC (Cri) 478]
, Mehmood Ul Rehman v. Khazir Mohammad Tunda [Mehmood
Ul Rehman v. Khazir Mohammad Tunda, (2015) 12 SCC 420 :
(2016) 1 SCC (Cri) 124] , Sunil Bharti Mittal v. CBI [Sunil Bharti
Mittal v. CBI, (2015) 4 SCC 609 : (2015) 2 SCC (Cri) 687]
and Ravindranatha Bajpe v. Mangalore Special Economic Zone
Ltd. [Ravindranatha Bajpe v. Mangalore Special Economic Zone
Ltd., (2022) 15 SCC 430 : 2021 SCC OnLine SC 806] The
respondent argued that this Court has made a distinction on
application of mind by the Judge for the purpose of taking
cognizance based on a police report on the one hand and a
private complaint under Section 200CrPC on the other, and that
the requirement of a demonstrable application of mind in the
latter case is higher. For this purpose, the counsel relied on this
Court's decisions in Bhushan Kumar v. State (NCT of
Delhi) [Bhushan Kumar v. State (NCT of Delhi), (2012) 5 SCC
424: (2012) 2 SCC (Cri) 872] and State of Gujarat v. Afroz
Mohammed Hasanfatta [State of Gujarat v. Afroz Mohammed
Hasanfatta, (2019) 20 SCC 539 : (2020) 3 SCC (Cri) 876] .

85. Moreover, Kurian Joseph, J. writing for the two-Judge
Bench has clearly taken note of the difference between Sections
190(1)(a) and 190(1)(b) : (Mehmood Ul Rehman
case [Mehmood Ul Rehman v. Khazir Mohammad Tunda, (2015)
12 SCC 420 : (2016) 1 SCC (Cri) 1247, SCC p. 430, para 21)

“21. Under Section 190(1)(b)CrPC, the
Magistrate has the advantage of a police report and
under Section 190(1)(c)CrPC, he has the information
or knowledge of commission of an offence. But under
Section 190(1)(a)CrPC, he has only a complaint
before him. The Code hence specifies that ™“a
complaint of facts which constitute such offence”.
Therefore, if the complaint, on the face of it, does not
disclose the commission of any offence, the
Magistrate shall not take cognizance under Section
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190(1)(a)CrPC. The complaint is simply to be
rejected.”

86. In Fakhruddin Ahmad [Fakhruddin Ahmadv.
State of Uttaranchal, (2008) 17 SCC 157 : (2010) 4 SCC
(Cri) 478] , a complaint was lodged before the Judicial
Magistrate alleging commission of offences under
Sections 240, 467, 468 and 471IPC. The Magistrate
directed the police to register the case and investigate it.
The Magistrate thus, instead of following the procedure
laid down under Section 200 or 202CrPC, ordered that
the matter be investigated and a report be submitted
under Section 173(2) of the Code. Based on the police
report, cognhizance was taken by the Magistrate. A two-
Judge Bench of this Court observed that the Magistrate
must apply his mind before taking cognizance of the
offence. However, no observation was made that the
cognhizance order based on a police report needs to be
“well-reasoned”. On the facts of the case, the Court held
that since the cognizance order was not placed before
the High Court, it did not have the opportunity to review
if the Magistrate had applied his mind while taking
cognhizance. The matter was thus remanded back to the
High Court for it to peruse the documents and then
decide the Section 482 petition afresh.

87. It must be noted that the decisions in Pepsi Foods
Ltd. [Pepsi Foods Ltd. v. Special Judicial Magistrate, (1998) 5
SCC 749 : 1998 SCC (Cri) 1400] and Mehmood Ul
Rehman [Mehmood Ul Rehman v. Khazir Mohammad Tunda,
(2015) 12 SCC 420 : (2016) 1 SCC (Cri) 124] arose in the
context of a private complaint. Though the decision in Sunil
Bharti Mittal [Sunil Bharti Mittal v. CBI, (2015) 4 SCC 609 :
(2015) 2 SCC (Cri) 687] arose from a police report, it is
evident from the narration of facts in the earlier part of
this judgment that in that case, the charge-sheet had not
named the Chief Executive Officers of the Telecom
Companies as accused. The Magistrate, however,
furnished the reason that the CEO was an alter ego of the
Telecom Company which, as this Court noted in its
judgment was a “reverse application” of the alter ego
doctrine.
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88. Similarly, the cognizance order in Fakhruddin
Ahmad [Fakhruddin Ahmad v. State of Uttaranchal, (2008) 17
SCC 157 : (2010) 4 SCC (Cri) 478] was based on a police
report. However, this Court remanded the case back to the High
Court for fresh consideration of the validity of the cognizance
order and did not review the Magistrate's satisfaction before
issuing the cognizance order. Therefore, none of the above
judgments referred to support the contention of the appellant.
Though all the above judgments mention that the Magistrate
needs to apply his mind to the materials placed before him
before taking cognizance, they have been differentiated on facts
from the present case as unlike the present case where
coghizance was taken based on the SIT report, in those cases
cognhizance was taken based on a complaint. The difference in
the standard of proof for application of mind with reference to
cognhizance based on a complaint and police report has been
briefly discussed in Mehmood Ul Rehman [Mehmood Ul
Rehman v. Khazir Mohammad Tunda, (2015) 12 SCC 420 :
(2016) 1 SCC (Cri) 124] and Fakhruddin Ahmad [Fakhruddin
Ahmad v. State of Uttaranchal, (2008) 17 SCC 157 : (2010) 4
SCC (Cri) 478] . A two-Judge Bench of this Court in Afroz
Mohammed Hasanfatta [State of Gujarat v. Afroz Mohammed
Hasanfatta, (2019) 20 SCC 539 : (2020) 3 SCC (Cri) 876] laid
down the law on the difference of the standard of review of the
application of mind by the Judge while taking cognizance based
on a police report and a private complaint.

108.8. Since cognizance was taken by the Special Judge
based on a police report and not a private complaint, it is not
obligatory for the Special Judge to issue a fully reasoned order if
it otherwise appears that the Special Judge has applied his mind
to the material.”

(Emphasis supplied)
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14(f). SRI RATAN BABULAL LATH v. STATE OF
KARNATAKA®:-

“"The Apex Court in terms of clause (viii) of the
aforesaid conclusions holds that since cognizance is
taken based on a police report and not a private
complaint, it is not obligatory for the Judge to issue a
completely reasoned order if it otherwise appears that
the Judge has applied his mind to the material.”

(Emphasis supplied)

15. The Apex Court in the case of JAGDISH RAM supra holds
that the Magistrate is not expected to consider entire material while
taking cognizance; it should be a well written order and bear
application of mind. The Magistrate is not required to advert to
whether there is sufficient ground for conviction. In the case of
BHUSHAN KUMAR supra, the Apex Court again reiterates that if
cognizance is taken under Section 190 of the Code, application of
judicial mind to the averments of the complaint is necessary. The
Magistrate has to be satisfied whether there is sufficient ground for
proceeding in the matter or not and whether there is sufficient
ground for conviction. In AFROZ MOHAMMED HASANFATTA

supra the Apex Court holds that it is not necessary to pass a

¢ Criminal Petition No.1367 of 2022 decided on 10" May 2022
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detailed order when the Magistrate or the concerned Court has
taken cognizance on a final report. The same goes with the order of
the coordinate Bench in S.C.JAYACHANDRA supra. The Apex
Court in the case of PRADEEP S.WODEYAR at para 108.8 supra
holds that the Court is not obliged to pass a fully reasoned order if
it otherwise appears that the Special Judge has applied his mind.
This Court in RATAN BABULAL LATH’s case considers all these
judgments and holds that the order of taking cognizance did bear
application of mind. The aforesaid are the judgments relied on by

the learned senior counsel for the respondent/CID.

The subsequent elucidation:

16. The Apex Court, in the case of SACHIN GARG v. STATE
OF U.P.’, has held as follows:

“20. While it is true that at the stage of issuing
summons a magistrate only needs to be satisfied with a
prima facie case for taking cognizance, the duty of the
magistrate is also to be satisfied whether there is
sufficient ground for proceeding, as has been held in the
case of Jagdish Ram (supra). The same proposition of
law has been laid down in the case of Pepsi Foods
Ltd. v. Special Judicial Magistrate [(1998) 5 SCC 749].
The learned Magistrate's order issuing summons records

72024 SCC OnLine SC 82
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the background of the case in rather longish detail but
reflects his satisfaction in a cryptic manner. At the stage
of issue of summons, detailed reasoning as to why a
Magistrate is issuing summons, however, is not
necessary. But in this case, we are satisfied that the
allegations made by the complainant do not give rise to
the offences for which the appellant has been summoned
for trial. A commercial dispute, which ought to have been
resolved through the forum of Civil Court has been given
criminal colour by lifting from the penal code certain words or
phrases and implanting them in a criminal complaint. The
learned Magistrate here failed to apply his mind in issuing
summons and the High Court also failed to exercise its
jurisdiction under Section 482 of the 1973 Code to prevent
abuse of the power of the Criminal Court.”

(Emphasis supplied)

The Apex Court has held that while it is true that at the stage of
issuing summons, the Magistrate only needs to be satisfied with a
prim facie case for taking cognizance. The duty is to record that
there is sufficient ground. The Apex Court observes that learned
Magistrate’s order issuing summons records the background of the
case in rather longish detail but reflects his satisfaction in a cryptic
manner. Therefore, the Apex Court was holding that satisfaction of
the Magistrate to issue summons was imperative. Satisfaction is

discernible only if the order would bear application of mind. The
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Apex Court, again, in the case of SHARIF AHMED v. STATE OF
UTTAR PRADESHS? has held as follows:

6. We would like to elaborate on certain aspects,
as submission of the chargesheet is for taking cognisance
and summoning of the accused by the Magistrate, which
stages are of considerable importance and significance.

14. In the context of the present issue, it would be
apt to refer to Section 190 and Section 204 of the Code,
along with the provisions relating to contents of charge,
namely, Sections 211 to 213 and Section 218 of the Code,
which read as under:

“190. Cognizance of offences by Magistrates.—(1)

Subject to the provisions of this Chapter, any Magistrate

of the first class, and any Magistrate of the second class

specially empowered in this behalf under sub-section

(2), may take cognizance of any offence—

(a) upon receiving a complaint of facts which
constitute such offence;

(b) upon a police report of such facts;

(c) upon information received from any person other
than a police officer, or upon his own knowledge,
that such offence has been committed.

(2) The Chief Judicial Magistrate may empower
any Magistrate of the second class to take cognizance
under sub-section (1) of such offences as are within his
competence to inquire into or try.

XXXXXX

204. Issue of process.—(1) If in the opinion of a
Magistrate taking cognizance of an offence there is
sufficient ground for proceeding, and the case appears
to be—

(a) a summons-case, he shall issue his summons for
the attendance of the accused, or

2024 SCC OnLine SC 726
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(b) a warrant-case, he may issue a warrant, or, if he
thinks fit, a summons, for causing the accused to
be brought or to appear at a certain time before
such Magistrate or (if he has no jurisdiction
himself) some other Magistrate having
jurisdiction.

(2) No summons or warrant shall be issued
against the accused under sub-section (1) until a list of
the prosecution witnesses has been filed.

(3) In a proceeding instituted upon a complaint
made in writing, every summons or warrant issued
under sub-section

(1) shall be accompanied by a copy of such
complaint.

(4) When by any law for the time being in force
any process-fees or other fees are payable, no process
shall be issued until the fees are paid and, if such fees
are not paid within a reasonable time, the Magistrate
may dismiss the complaint.

(5) Nothing in this section shall be deemed to
affect the provisions of Section 87.

15. On the submission of the police report, Dablu
Kujur (supra) refers to an earlier decision of this Court
in Bhagwant Singh v. Commissioner of Police®®, and
discusses the power and the role of the Magistrate when
he receives the police report and the options available to
him, in the following words:

“14. When such a Police Report concludes that an
offence appears to have been committed by a particular
person or persons, the Magistrate has three options
: (i) he may accept the report and take cognizance of the
offence and issue process, (ii) he may direct further
investigation under subsection (3) of Section 156 and
require the police to make a further report, or (iii) he
may disagree with the report and discharge the accused
or drop the proceedings. If such Police Report concludes
that no offence appears to have been committed, the
Magistrate again has three options : (i) he may accept
the report and drop the proceedings, or (ii) he may
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disagree with the report and taking the view that there
is sufficient ground for proceeding further, take
cognizance of the offence and issue process, or (iii) he
may direct further investigation to be made by the police
under sub-section (3) of Section 156.”

It is in this context that the provisions of Sections 190
and 204 of the Code become important. Clause (a) of Section
190 states that the Magistrate can take cognisance of an
offence on receiving a complaint of facts which constitute such
offence. Clause (b) relates to a situation where the Magistrate
receives a police report carrying such facts, i.e., facts which
constitute such offence. In Minu Kumari v. State of Bihar** this
Court referred to the options available to the Magistrate on
how to proceed in terms of Section 190(1)(b) of the Code, and
held:

“11... The position is, therefore, now well settled
that upon receipt of a police report under Section 173(2)
a Magistrate is entitled to take cognizance of an offence
under Section 190(1)(b) of the Code even if the police
report is to the effect that no case is made out against
the accused. The Magistrate can take into account the
statements of the witnesses examined by the police
during the investigation and take cognizance of the
offence complained of and order the issue of process to
the accused. Section 190(1)(b) does not lay down that a
Magistrate can take cognizance of an offence only if the
investigating officer gives an opinion that the
investigation has made out a case against the accused.
The Magistrate can ignore the conclusion arrived at by
the investigating officer and independently apply his
mind to the facts emerging from the investigation and
take cognizance of the case, if he thinks fit, exercise his
powers under Section 190(1)(b) and direct the issue of
process to the accused. The Magistrate is not bound in
such a situation to follow the procedure laid down in
Sections 200 and 202 of the Code for taking cognizance
of a case under Section 190(1)(a) though it is open to
him to act under Section 200 or Section 202 also.
(See India Carat (P) Ltd. v. State of Karnataka [(1989) 2
SCC 132 : 1989 SCC (Cri) 306 : AIR 1989 SC 885].)

12. The informant is not prejudicially affected
when the Magistrate decides to take cognizance and to
proceed with the case. But where the Magistrate decides
that sufficient ground does not subsist for proceeding
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further and drops the proceeding or takes the view that
there is material for proceeding against some and there
are insufficient grounds in respect of others, the
informant would certainly be prejudiced as the first
information report lodged becomes wholly or partially
ineffective. This Court in Bhagwant Singh v. Commr. of
Police held that where the Magistrate decides not to take
cognizance and to drop the proceeding or takes a view
that there is no sufficient ground for proceeding against
some of the persons mentioned in the first information
report, notice to the informant and grant of opportunity
of being heard in the matter becomes mandatory. As
indicated above, there is no provision in the Code for
issue of a notice in that regard.

(Emphasis supplied)

The Apex Court holds that application of mind is imperative if taking
of cognizance and issuing of process is an action that the concerned
Court would take. The Apex Court considers all earlier judgments,
all of which are relied on by the learned senior counsel for the
respondent/CID. In the later judgment, the Apex Court in the case
of VIKAS CHANDRA v. STATE OF U.P. UTTAR PRADESH.’ has
held as follows:

“14. In the aforesaid circumstances, the next
question to be considered is whether a summons issued
by a Magistrate can be interfered with in exercise of the
power under Section 482,Cr. P.C.In the decisions
in Bhushan Kumar v. State (NCT of Delhi) and Pepsi
Foods Ltd.'s case (supra) this Court held that a petition
filed under Section 482, Cr. P.C., for quashing an order
summoning the accused is maintainable. There cannot be
any doubt that once it is held that sine qua non for

2024 SCC OnLine SC 1534
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exercise of the power to issue summons is the subjective
satisfaction “on the ground for proceeding further” while
exercising the power to consider the legality of a
summons issued by a Magistrate, certainly it is the duty
of the Court to look into the question as to whether the
learned Magistrate had applied his mind to form an
opinion as to the existence of sufficient ground for
proceeding further and in that regard to issue summons
to face the trial for the offence concerned. In this context,
we think it appropriate to state that one should understand that
‘taking cognizance’, empowered under Section 190, Cr. P.C,,
and ‘issuing process’, empowered under Section 204, Cr. P.C.,
are different and distinct. (See the decision in Sunil Bharti
Mittal v. C.B.1L.).

16. In the decision inS.M.S. Pharmaceuticals
Ltd. v. Neeta Bhalla, this Court held that the settled
position for summoning of an accused is that the Court
has to see the prima facie evidence. This Court went on
to hold that the ‘prima facie evidence’ means the
evidence sufficient for summoning the accused and not
the evidence sufficient to warrant conviction. The inquiry
under Section 202, Cr. P.C., is limited only to ascertain whether
on the material placed by the complainant a prima facie case
was made out for summoning the accused or not.

17. In an earlier decision in Smt. Nagawwa v. Veeranna
Shivalingappa Konjalgi, this Court laid down certain conditions
whereunder a complaint can be quashed invoking the power
under Section 482, Cr. P.C., thus:—

“(1) where the allegations made in the complaint or the
statements of the witnesses recorded in support of the same
taken at their face value make out absolutely no case against
the accused or the complaint does not disclose the essential
ingredients of an offence which is alleged against the accused;

(2) where the allegations made in the complaint are
patently absurd and inherently improbable so that no prudent
person can ever reach a conclusion that there is sufficient
ground for proceeding against the accused;
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(3) where the discretion exercised by the Magistrate in
issuing process is capricious and arbitrary having been based
either on no evidence or on materials which are wholly
irrelevant or inadmissible; and

(4) where the complaint suffers from fundamental legal
defects, such as, want of sanction, or absence of a complaint
by legally competent authority and the like.”

20. As per the impugned judgment the High Court went
on to consider and held thus:—

"As per mandate of this Section, there must be
explicit or implicit abetment or some overt act indicative
or suggestive of fact that some instigation was given for
committing suicide and the applicant was having an
interest in it. Nothing has surfaced, which may reflect on
the mindset of the applicant that he ever intended the
consequence that the deceased would commit suicide
and with that view in mind, he stopped payment of
salary. Had it been the actual position then obviously the
suicide note must have whispered about that particular
aspect or it would have at least alluded to that situation,
but on careful perusal of the suicide note it explicit that
the deceased himself was bent upon committing suicide
in case the salary was not drawn in his favour. But under
circumstances, there is nothing to suggest that the
applicant was conscious of that position and knowing
the same situation he insisted that he would not pay the
salary in question. The trial court, however, ignoring all
these legal aspects took cognizance of the offence by
rejecting the final report submitted by the Investigating
Officer and issued process against the applicant by way
of summoning. Resultantly, this application is allowed.
Criminal proceedings of impugned order dated
05.04.2012 passed by Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Shahjahanpur in Criminal Case No. 1478 of
2012, Vikas v. Ram Babu, Case Crime No. C-2 of 2005,
under Section 306 IPC, Police Station-Alhaganj, District
Shahjahanpur by which the applicant has been
summoned to face the trial is hereby quashed.”

(Emphasis supplied)
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The Apex Court, again, in the case of JM LABORATORIES V.

STATE OF ANDHRA PRADESH?° has held as follows:

“8. In the judgment and order of even date in criminal
appeal arising out of SLP (Crl.) No. 2345 of 2024 titled “INOX
Air Products Limited Now Known as INOX Air Products Private
Limited v. The State of Andhra Pradesh”, we have observed
thus:

“33. It could be seen from the aforesaid order that except
recording the submissions of the complainant, no reasons are
recorded for issuing the process against the accused persons.

34. In this respect, it will be relevant to refer to the
following observations of this Court in the case of Pepsi Foods
Ltd. v. Special Judicial Magistrate (1998) 5 SCC 749 (supra):

"28. Summoning of an accused in a criminal case is a
serious matter. Criminal law cannot be set into motion as a
matter of course. It is not that the complainant has to bring
only two witnesses to support his allegations in the complaint
to have the criminal law set into motion. The order of the
Magistrate summoning the accused must reflect that he has
applied his mind to the facts of the case and the law applicable
thereto. He has to examine the nature of allegations made in
the complaint and the evidence both oral and documentary in
support thereof and would that be sufficient for the complainant
to succeed in bringing charge home to the accused. It is not
that the Magistrate is a silent spectator at the time of recording
of preliminary evidence before summoning of the accused. The
Magistrate has to carefully scrutinise the evidence
brought on record and may even himself put questions to
the complainant and his withesses to elicit answers to
find out the truthfulness of the allegations or otherwise
and then examine if any offence is prima facie committed
by all or any of the accused.”

35. This Court has clearly held that summoning of an
accused in a criminal case is a serious matter. It has
been held that the order of the Magistrate summoning
the accused must reflect that he has applied his mind to
the facts of the case and the law applicable thereto. This
Court held that the Magistrate is required to examine the
nature of allegations made in the complaint and the
evidence, both oral and documentary in support thereof

192025 SCC online SC 208
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and as to whether that would be sufficient for
proceeding against the accused. It has been held that
the Magistrate is not a silent spectator at the time of
recording of preliminary evidence before summoning the
accused.

36. The said law would be consistently following by this
Court in a catena of judgments including in the cases of Sunil
Bharti Mittal v. Central Bureau of Investigation (2015) 4 SCC
609, Mehmood Ul Rehman v. Khazir Mohammad Tunda (2015)
12 SCC 420 and Krishna Lal Chawla v. State of Uttar
Pradesh (2021) 5 SCC 435.

37. Recently, a Bench of this Court to which one of us
(Gavai, J.) was a Member, in the case ofLalankumar
Singh v. State  of Maharashtra 2022 SCC OnLine SC
1383 (supra), has observed thus:

“"38. The order of issuance of process is not an empty
formality. The Magistrate is required to apply his mind as to
whether sufficient ground for proceeding exists in the case or
not. The formation of such an opinion is required to be stated in
the order itself. The order is liable to be set aside if no reasons
are given therein while coming to the conclusion that there is
a prima facie case against the accused. No doubt, that the
order need not contain detailed reasons. A reference in this
respect could be made to the judgment of this Court in the case
of Sunil Bharti Mittal v. Central Bureau of Investigation®, which
reads thus:

“51. On the other hand, Section 204 of the Code deals
with the issue of process, if in the opinion of the Magistrate
taking cognizance of an offence, there is sufficient ground for
proceeding. This section relates to commencement of a criminal
proceeding. If the Magistrate taking cognizance of a case (it
may be the Magistrate receiving the complaint or to whom it
has been transferred under Section 192), upon a consideration
of the materials before him (i.e. the complaint, examination of
the complainant and his witnesses, if present, or report of
inquiry, if any), thinks that there is a prima facie case for
proceeding in respect of an offence, he shall issue process
against the accused.

52. A wide discretion has been given as to grant or refusal
of process and it must be judicially exercised. A person ought
not to be dragged into court merely because a complaint has
been filed. If a prima facie case has been made out, the
Magistrate ought to issue process and it cannot be refused
merely because he thinks that it is unlikely to result in a
conviction.
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53. However, the words "“sufficient ground for
proceeding” appearing in Section 204 are of immense
importance. It is these words which amply suggest that
an opinion is to be formed only after due application of
mind that there is sufficient basis for proceeding against
the said accused and formation of such an opinion is to
be stated in the order itself. The order is liable to be set
aside if no reason is given therein while coming to the
conclusion that there is prima facie case against the
accused, though the order need not contain detailed
reasons. A fortiori, the order would be bad in law if the
reason given turns out to be ex facie incorrect.”

39. A similar view has been taken by this Court in the
case of Ashoke Mal Bafna (supra).

40. In the present case, leaving aside there being no
reasons in support of the order of the issuance of
process, as a matter of fact, it is clear from the order of
the learned Single Judge of the High Court, that there
was no such order passed at all. The learned Single
Judge of the High Court, based on the record, has
presumed that there was an order of issuance of process.
We find that such an approach is unsustainable in law.
The appeal therefore deserves to be allowed.”

(Emphasis supplied)
The Apex Court in the case of SANJAY DUTT V. STATE OF

HARYANA?! has held as follows:

“15. When jurisdiction is exercised on a complaint
petition filed in terms of Section 156(3) or Section 200 of
the CrPC, the Court concerned should remain vigilant &
apply its mind carefully before taking cognizance of a
complaint of the present nature.”

(Emphasis supplied)

'12025 SCC OnLine SC 32
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The Apex Court, in all the aforesaid judgments, has followed the
judgment in the case of SUNIL BHARTI MITTAL V. CBI'%. Since
the Three Judge Bench decision has been quoted in all the aforesaid
judgments and followed, I deem it appropriate to notice the same

at this juncture. The elucidation of the Apex Court reads as follows:

“51. On the other hand, Section 204 of the Code deals with
the issue of process, if in the opinion of the Magistrate taking
cognizance of an offence, there is sufficient ground for
proceeding. This section relates to commencement of a criminal
proceeding. If the Magistrate taking cognizance of a case (it may
be the Magistrate receiving the complaint or to whom it has been
transferred under Section 192), upon a consideration of the
materials before him (i.e. the complaint, examination of the
complainant and his witnesses, if present, or report of inquiry, if
any), thinks that there is a prima facie case for proceeding in
respect of an offence, he shall issue process against the accused.

53. However, the words “sufficient ground for proceeding”
appearing in Section 204 are of immense importance. It is these
words which amply suggest that an opinion is to be formed only
after due application of mind that there is sufficient basis for
proceeding against the said accused and formation of such an
opinion is to be stated in the order itself. The order is liable to be
set aside if no reason is given therein while coming to the
conclusion that there is prima facie case against the accused,

'2(2015)4 SCC 609
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though the order need not contain detailed reasons. A fortiori, the
order would be bad in law if the reason given turns out to be ex
facie incorrect.”

(Emphasis supplied)

On a coalensce of the judgments rendered by the Apex Court as
quoted hereinabove, what would unmistakably emerge is, that the
order of taking of cognizance and issuance of process should bear
application of mind. Section 190(1)(a) deals with cognizance being
taken on a complaint which would be a private complaint presented
before the concerned Court. Section 190(1)(b) deals with
cognizance taken on a police report which would be a final
report/charge sheet filed before the concerned Court. Therefore,
cognizance can be taken only under Section 190 of the CrPC.

Section 204 deals with issue of process.

17. After the concerned Court takes cognizance under Section
190 of the Cr.P.C., process is issued under Section 204 of the
Cr.P.C. Sub-section (1) thereof mandates that, if in the opinion of
the Magistrate, taking cognizance of an offence there is sufficient

ground for proceeding, it shall issue process. Therefore, the words



88

‘there is sufficient ground’ assumes all importance. The necessity
of recording reasons for existence of sufficient ground is thus
imperative and those reasons are discernible only, if they are
recorded in writing, which would reflect application of mind, on the
part of the Court taking cognizance and issuing summons.
Therefore, the judgments relied on by the learned senior counsel
for the petitioner are all overwhelming to the judgments relied on
by the learned senior counsel for the respondent/CID, as all the
judgments that are quoted hereinabove, fallen from the arsenal of
the learned senior counsel for the petitioner, are of 2024 and
2025, and they consider the very issue as against the judgments
which are little earlier cited by the learned senior counsel for the
respondent/CID and the law as laid down by the Apex Court is that
order of taking cognizance and issuing summons must bear

application of mind.

18. With the law being thus, I now deem it appropriate to
re-notice the order taking cognizance in the case at hand. It reads
as follows:

“04-07-2024
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Case called out. Learned Special Public Prosecutor
present.

Heard and perused the office note and also perused the
police report and the documents submitted along with the police
report including complaint, FIR, statements of witnesses and
the documents.

On perusal of police report and documents produced
along with police, there are prima facie material placed records
so as to proceed against the accused and also to issue process
against the accused.

Therefore, on being satisfied with prima facie
materials placed records, exercising the powers U/s
190(1) (b) r/w Section 193 of CrPC, cognizance is taken
for the offences punishable Under Section 8 of POCSO
Act, 2012, Section 354(A), 204 and 214 r/w Sec.37 of
IPC.

Office is directed to register this case as Special
C.c. in criminal register.

Office to attend regarding compliance U/s 35(1) of
POCSO Act i.e., securing statement U/s 164 of CrPC,
Medical report, FSL Report, Property from the
complainant Police.

Issue summons to the accused persons R/by
15-07-2024."

(Emphasis added)

The Court observes ‘perused the charge sheet and all the
documents’. On perusal of the same, the Court is satisfied that

prima facie case has been committed by the accused as alleged.
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Therefore, cognizance is taken under Section 190(1)(b) and
summons issued ostensibly under Section 204 of the CrPC. The
order of taking cognizance and issuing of process does not bear
even a semblance of application of mind. It runs completely
counter to the necessity under Section 190(1)(b) or Section 204 of
the Cr.P.C. as elucidated by the Apex Court in the aforesaid

judgments.

19. The learned senior counsel for the respondent/CID
submits that in 80% of cases the Courts would take cognizance in
the same manner while that would not impress this Court to dismiss
the petition and permit perpetration of irregularity or illegality by
the concerned Court, just because it has become a habit to take
cognizance and issue summons in this manner. Not for nothing is
the elucidation by the Apex Court in regard to existence of sufficient
grounds and application of judicial mind. The Court is expected to
record reasons for taking of cognizance. Though the reasons need
not be so elaborate when it records framing of charges or
conviction, nonetheless, it must bear application of mind to set

further proceedings in motion, as taking of cognizance or issuance
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of process has some judicial sanctity. It cannot be froliccsome act on
the part of the learned Magistrate who would take cognizance and

issue summons.

20. If the afore-quoted order of taking of cognizance is
considered on the touchstone of the principles laid down by the
Apex Court as to the requirement of application of mind, the order
of cognizance impugned, inter alia, would be rendered
unsustainable, while it is not the same with regard to the other
submissions. The submissions of the learned senior counsel for the
petitioner is that there is no indication of the cognizance being
taken against a particular person. It is his submission that Sections
204 and 214 of the IPC do not get attracted against the petitioner
at all. Be those submissions as they are. In the light of the order of
taking cognizance being found to be blatant non-application of mind
and the resultant obliteration, I do not find any necessity to
consider the submissions qua the offences at this stage. Suffice it
so say, that the learned Sessions Judge shall now look into the
entire material that is before him and pass necessary orders on the

final report, bearing in mind the observations made in the course of
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It is needless to observe that the order should bear

application of mind and application of mind in an order is

discernible, only if reasons are recorded in writing, failing which,

the order would depict an inscrutable face of the sphinx.

21. For the aforesaid reasons the following:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

ORDER

Writ Petition is allowed in part.

The order of taking cognizance by the concerned Court
dated 4-07-2024 passed in Crime No.9 of 2024 (Special
C.C.N0.1283 of 2024) qua accused No.1 stands
obliterated.

The crime, the investigation and the final report, all
remain intact.

The matter is remitted back to the hands of the
concerned Court to pass appropriate orders on the final
report so placed before it by the CID, bearing in mind
the observations made in the course of the order.

It is made clear that this Court has not answered any of
the contentions so advanced by both the learned senior
counsel, except the submission with regard to the order
of taking cognizance.

All other contentions shall remain open. The petitioner
is at liberty to avail all such remedy, as is available in
law, at the appropriate stage before the appropriate
forum.
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IN WRIT PETITION No.18538 OF 2024.

22. The subject petition is preferred by accused Nos.2, 3 and
4 in Spl.C.C.1283 of 2024. The companion petition is of the accused
No.1. The complaint so filed is common, only the allegations are
different against these accused. They are for the offences

punishable under Sections 204 and 214 r/w Section 34 of the IPC.

23. The order of taking of coghizance qua all the petitioners
is common. The order of cognizance is quoted in the companion
petition and extensively dealt with. Therefore, for the very reasons
rendered in W.P.No.15522 of 2024, the present petition also

deserves to follow suit.

24. The order of cognizance being common and the same
being found fault with in the companion petition, no further reason

need be assigned separately in the case at hand.

25. Therefore, for the reasons so rendered in W.P.No0.15522
of 2024, the subject petition also deserves to succeed in part, with

the same order becoming applicable to the case at hand.
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26. For the aforesaid reasons the following:
ORDER
() Writ Petition is allowed in part.

(i)  The order of taking cognizance by the concerned Court
dated 4-07-2024 passed in Crime No.9 of 2024 (Special
C.C.N0.1283 of 2024) qua accused Nos.2, 3 and 4 also
stands obliterated.

(iii) The crime, the investigation and the final report, all
remain intact.

(iv) The matter is remitted back to the hands of the
concerned Court to pass appropriate orders on the final
report so placed before it, by the CID, bearing in mind
the observations made in the course of the order.

(v) It is made clear that this Court has not answered any of
the contentions so advanced by both the learned senior
counsel, except the submission with regard to the order
of taking cognizance.

(vi) All other contentions shall remain open. The petitioners
are at liberty to avail all such remedy, as is available in
law, at the appropriate stage, before the appropriate
forum.

Consequently, pending applications if any in both the

petitions, shall also stand disposed.

sd/

JUSTICE M.NAGAPRASANNA

Bkp/cT:ss



		2025-02-07T13:45:05+0530
	High court of Karnataka, Dharwad Bench, Dharwad
	VISHAL NINGAPPA PATTIHAL




